
Agenda Item No.    4    

2020 Census Redistricting Task Force 
AGENDA PACKET CONTENTS LIST 

 
Date:    April 8, 2022  
Date:        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    RTF Meeting Minutes - April 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11, and 13, 2022   
               
               

 
Prepared by:    John Carroll   Date:    April 22, 2022   
Prepared by:    John Carroll   Date:         
Prepared by:    John Carroll   Date:         



 
REDISTRICTING TASK FORCE 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 
MINUTES 

 
 

City Hall, Room 408 
(remote access provided) 

(remote public comment provided via teleconference) 
www.sfgovtv.org  

 
April 4, 2022 – 5:30 PM 

 
Special Meeting 

 
Members: Jeremy Lee, Jose Maria (Chema) Hernández Gil, J. Michelle Pierce, Matthew 

Castillon, Arnold Townsend, Lily Ho, Raynell Cooper, Chasel Lee, Ditka Reiner 
 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
The Redistricting Task Force met in special session, in-person with remote access and 
public comment via telephone and videoconference, on Monday, April 4, 2022. Chair 
Reverend Arnold Townsend called the meeting to order at 5:42 p.m. 
 
On the call of the roll, Chair Townsend, Member Jeremy Lee, Member Hernández Gil, 
Member Pierce, Member Castillon, Member Ho, Member Cooper, Member Chasel Lee, 
and Vice Chair Reiner were noted present. 
 
A quorum was present. 

 
2. Mapping 

 
Member Chasel Lee provided a presentation on mapping and public input, including an 
overview of the redistricting process, important criteria for redistricting, recognized 
neighborhoods and communities of interest, compactness, contiguity, census geography, 
and the next steps for the Task Force. Jaime Clark, Redistricting Consultant (Q2 Data 
and Research); Andrew Shen, Deputy City Attorney (Office of the City Attorney); 
answered questions raised throughout the discussion. 
 

Chair Townsend recessed the meeting beginning at 8:33 p.m., and reconvened the meeting 
at 8:52 p.m. 
 
At the request of Chair Townsend, Vice Chair Reiner assumed the Chair pro tem at 11:49 p.m., 
and resumed the Chair at 11:54 p.m. 

 

http://www.sfgovtv.org/


Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 4, 2022 
 
 

 Page 2 

Speakers: Walter Caplan; requested that the Task Force recognize the Lakeshore Acres 
and Merced Manor neighborhoods and retain them wholly within District 7 rather than 
District 4. 
Christine Zaback; shared various concerns with the Task Force in regard to the 
Districts 4 and 7 boundaries. 
Cheryl Thornton; requested that the Task Force retain Potrero Hill in District 10. 
Martha Bolden; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Presidio Heights 
neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Margaret Cooley; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Presidio 
Terrace neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Julie Pitta; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Presidio Terrace 
neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1, and requested that the Task Force 
expand the eastern boundary of District 1 toward Anza Vista. 
Fred Stein; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Presidio Terrace 
neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1, and requested that the Task Force 
expand the eastern boundary of District 1 toward Anza Vista. 
Laura Bolden; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Presidio Terrace 
neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1, and requested that the Task Force 
expand the eastern boundary of District 1 toward Anza Vista. 
Paul Hogarth; requested that the Task Force recognize the Russian Hill neighborhood 
and retain it within District 2 rather than District 2 and requested that the Task Force 
include the Seacliff and Presidio Terrace neighborhoods in District 2 rather than 
District 1. 
Jane Natoli; requested that the Task Force redistrict District 6 to be below mean district 
population in order to account for potential future growth. 
J. R. Eppler; endorsed the District 10 Unity map submitted by the Potrero Boosters and 
endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 10 boundaries. 
Bob Harrer (Barbary Coast Neighborhood Association); endorsed the District 3 
Neighborhoods United Plan map and supported the 4D map with adjustments to move 
the western boundary of District 3 to Van Ness Avenue. 
Thomas Duda; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 1 boundaries, requested 
that the Task Force recognize the tenant and low and medium income residents of the 
Richmond as a community of interest, and requested that the Task Force include the 
Seacliff and Presidio Terrace neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Colleen; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, and West 
Clay Park neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Michele; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Presidio Terrace 
neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
John McCormack; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Presidio 
Terrace neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1, that the Task Force retain the 
Potrero Hill neighborhood within District 10, requested that the Task Force recognize 
the cultural districts which have been established when drawing district lines and not 
separated or divide them among multiple supervisorial districts and requested that the 
Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one 
supervisorial district, and requested that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods 
of the existing District 5 together within the new District  5 map. 
Pamela Tao Lee; requested that the Task Force recognize the tenant and low and 
medium income residents of the Richmond as a community of interest, requested that the 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 4, 2022 
 
 

 Page 3 

Task Force recognize the senior centers of the Richmond and consider them during the 
redistricting process, and requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Presidio 
Terrace neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Cathy; requested that the Task Force recognize the tenant and low and medium income 
residents of the Richmond as a community of interest, requested that the Task Force 
recognize the senior centers of the Richmond and consider them during the redistricting 
process, requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Presidio Terrace 
neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1, and expand the District 1 boundaries 
to the east toward Anza Vista. 
Tab Buckner; requested that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the 
existing District 5 together within the new District 5 map and requested that the Task 
Force include the Seacliff and Presidio Terrace neighborhoods in District 2 rather than 
District 1. 
Don Misumi; offered opposition to the 4D map as pertains to the boundaries of 
Districts 1 and  2, requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Presidio 
Terrace neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1, and suggested that the Task 
Force expand the District 1 boundaries to the east toward Anza Vista. 
Gregory Richardson; requested that the Task Force not include the Tenderloin 
neighborhood to District 5 and suggested that the Western Addition Library be retained 
within District 5. 
Sandra Lee Fewer; requested that the Task Force recognize the tenant and low and 
medium income residents of the Richmond as a community of interest, requested that the 
Task Force recognize the senior centers of the Richmond and consider them during the 
redistricting process, and requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Presidio 
Terrace neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Maria (Bayanihan Equity Center); endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 6 
boundaries and the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6 with boundaries of Geary Boulevard, Polk Street, 
and 2nd Street. 
Dali; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 6 boundaries with adjustments to 
keep Treasure Island in District 6 and requested that the Task Force recognize the tenant 
and low and medium income residents of the Richmond as a community of interest, 
requested that the Task Force recognize the senior centers of the Richmond and consider 
them during the redistricting process, and requested that the Task Force include the 
Seacliff and Presidio Terrace neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Curtis Bradford, Co-Chair (Tenderloin Peoples Congress); endorsed the 4D map as 
pertains to the District 6 boundaries and the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods with boundaries at Geary Boulevard and Polk Street. 
Martin Alvarez, President (North of Panhandle Neighborhood Association); requested 
that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the existing District 5 together 
within the new District 5 map and requested that the Task Force recognize the 
Japantown community and retain it wholly within District 5 along with the Western 
Addition and Fillmore neighborhoods, and requested that the Task Force restore the 
Booker T. Washington Community Service Center to District 5. 
Jesse; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 6 boundaries, requested that the 
Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 4, 2022 
 
 

 Page 4 

Speaker (Bayanihan Equity Center); endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 6 
boundaries and the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods with boundaries at 
Geary Boulevard and Polk Street and requested that the Task Force include Treasure 
Island in District 6. 
Luisa Antonio, Executive Director (Bayanihan Equity Center); endorsed the 4D map as 
pertains to the District 6 boundaries and the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods and Polk Street, requested that the Task Force include Treasure Island in 
District 6, and requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in 
District 2 rather than District 1. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the senior, tenant, and low and medium 
income residents of the Richmond as a community of interest, requested that the Task 
Force include the Seacliff and Presidio Terrace neighborhoods in District 2 rather than 
District 1. 
Alec Bash (Gateway Tenants Association); endorsed the District 3 Neighborhoods United 
Plan map as pertains to the District 3 boundaries and suggested that the western 
boundary of District 3 should be at Van Ness Avenue. 
Diana Taylor (Barbary Coast Neighborhood Association); endorsed the District 3 
Neighborhoods United Plan map and the 4D map with an adjustment to establish the 
western boundary for District 3 as Van Ness Avenue. 
Jaime Deloria; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin, Central SOMA, and 
Treasure Island neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Jeff; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Presidio Terrace 
neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district, and requested that the Task Force 
include areas south of Sloat Boulevard in District 7 rather than District 4 and requested 
that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, and West Clay Park 
neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Pierre Smit (Ocean Avenue Association); requested that the Task Force not split the 
Ocean Avenue merchant corridor into two supervisorial districts. 
Hugo Kobayashi; requested that the Task Force recognize and retain the Inner Sunset 
neighborhood in District 5, and suggested that if needed the Inner Sunset should be 
included in District 4 rather than District 7. 
Jean Barrish; endorsed the 4D map with adjustments to include the Seacliff, Presidio 
Terrace, and West Clay Park neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Peter Warfield; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force recognize and 
retain the Inner Sunset neighborhood in District 5 with a boundary at Funston Avenue 
and suggested that the District 1 boundaries be moved to the east. 
Renne Curran; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 5 boundaries and 
requested that the Task Force recognize and retain the Inner Sunset neighborhood in 
District 5. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Susan Ford; endorsed the District 3 Neighborhoods United Plan map as pertains to the 
District 3 boundaries, requested that the Russian Hill neighborhood be included in 
District 3 with a western boundary at Van Ness Avenue. 
Grant Ingram; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, and 
West Clay Park neighborhoods and areas north of Lake Street in District 1 rather than 
District 2. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 4, 2022 
 
 

 Page 5 

Lori Liederman; requested that the Task Force recognize and retain the Inner Sunset 
neighborhood in District 5 rather than District 7 with a boundary at Funston Avenue, 
and suggested that the area of the UCSF Parnassus Campus not be retained wholly 
within District 7. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Dr. Emily Murase, Executive Director (Japantown Task Force); endorsed the 4D map 
and the endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition 
with an adjustment to bring the JCYC Chibi Chan Preschool in District 5. 
Bobak Esfandiari; requested that the Task Force set the population of the Richmond 
district to accommodate for potential future growth potential. 
Eileen Boken (Sunset Parkside Education and Action Committee SPEAK); requested that 
the Task Force consider moving the District 4 boundaries east to 19th Avenue and 
suggested that the Stonestown center be included in District 4. 
Catherine Howard; endorsed the 4D map with adjustments to include the areas south of 
Sloat Boulevard in District 7 rather than District 4, and suggested that the northern 
boundary of District 4 be moved partially into the Inner Sunset. 
Jonathan Meade; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, 
and West Clay Park neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Brenda Barros; requested that the Task Force include General Hospital in District 10, 
along with the Potrero Hill and Sunnydale neighborhoods. 
Elanor Cox; requested that the Task Force recognize and retain the Inner Sunset 
neighborhood in District 5 rather than District 7. 
Betty Louie (San Francisco Chamber of Commerce); endorsed the District 3 
Neighborhoods United Plan map and suggested that the District 3 boundaries be set at 
Van Ness Avenue and Market Street, do not include Seacliff in D2. 
Russel Morine; endorsed the District 10 Unity map submitted by the Potrero Boosters 
and requested that the Task Force include the Visitacion Valley, Little Hollywood, 
Potrero Hill, and Sunnydale neighborhoods together in District 10. 
Gilbert Crisswell; recommended that the area of Pearl Street between Duboce and 
Market should be in District 5 rather than District 8. 
Marlene Tran (Chinese American Democratic Club); requested that the Task Force 
include the Portola and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods in District 10. 
Tommy Yan; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, and 
West Clay Park neighborhoods in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Marie; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Jordan Park 
neighborhoods and the Lake Street corridor in District 1 rather than District 2, suggested 
that the Task Force include the Inner Sunset in District 7, and requested that the Task 
Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one 
supervisorial district. 
Daphne Alden; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, and 
West Clay Park neighborhoods in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 6 boundaries, requested that 
the Task Force recognize the cultural districts which have been established when 
drawing district lines and not separated or divide them among multiple supervisorial 
districts, requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6, and requested that the Task Force recognize and 
retain the Inner Sunset neighborhood in District 5. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 4, 2022 
 
 

 Page 6 

Sally Stephens; endorsed the 4D map with adjustments as pertain to the Inner Sunset, 
and requested that the Task Force recognize the Golden Gate Heights neighborhood and 
the Irving Street commercial corridor as a community of interest and retain them wholly 
within District 7. 
Matthias Mormino; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central 
SOMA neighborhoods, the SOMA Pilipinas, Leather District, and Trans District together 
in District 6, keep lower Polk and Middle Polk neighborhoods in District 3. 
Alisia Angstrom; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force include the 
Seacliff neighborhood and the Lake Street corridor in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Gloria Li; requested that the Task Force include the East Cut, Rincon Hill, and Mission 
Bay neighborhoods together in District 6, requested that the Task Force include the 
Seacliff and Presidio Terrace neighborhoods in District 1 rather than District 2, 
requested that the Russian Hill neighborhood be added to District 3, and that the 
Tenderloin be added to District 5. 
Kent; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Presidio Terrace 
neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1, that the southern boundary of 
District 4 be set at Sloat Boulevard, and that the Sunset Chinese Cultural District be 
retained wholly within one supervisorial district. 
Bob Goldfarb; endorsed the 4D map with adjustments as pertain to the Districts 3 and 6 
boundaries, and requested that the Task Force retain the Filipino Cultural District and 
the Leather District wholly within District 6. 
Lily Crawford; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Jordan Park 
neighborhoods in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Jessica; endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the District 10 boundaries and requested 
that the Task Force include the Portola and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods in 
District 10. 
Matt Roy; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, and West 
Clay Park neighborhoods in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Monty Woods; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and West Clay Park 
neighborhoods and areas north of Lake Street in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Carolyn Nguyen (Chinese Progressive Association); endorsed the 4D map and requested 
that the Task Force recognize the voices of residents of Single Room Occupancy (SRO) 
hotels and retain them wholly within one supervisorial district. 
Harlan Crawford; requested that the Task Force expand the boundaries of District 1 east 
toward Anza Vista. 
Jennifer Yan; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, and 
West Clay Park neighborhoods in District 1 rather than District 2, and that the Portola 
and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods be united in District 10. 
Madeline Trembley; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 3 boundaries with 
an adjustment to set the western border at Van Ness Avenue, endorsed the District 3 
Neighborhoods United Plan map, requested that the Task Force recognize the Gateway 
and Barbary Coast neighborhoods in District 3 as a community of interest and retain 
them wholly within District 3. 
Lisa Awbrey; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map 
Coalition and endorsed the 4D map with adjustments to include the Inner Sunset in 
District 5 rather than District 4 of 7. 
Richard Ivanhoe; requested that the Task Force include the south eastern portion of 
Golden Gate Park in District 5, and set the south western boundary of District 5 as 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 4, 2022 
 
 

 Page 7 

Funston Avenue and Kirkham Street in the Inner Sunset, requested that the Task Force 
not include areas south of Sloat Boulevard in District 4, include Treasure Island in 
District 6, and keep the Seacliff and Presidio Terrace neighborhoods in District 2. 
Carol Ann Rogers, President (Russian Hill Neighbors); endorsed the District 3 
Neighborhoods United Plan map. 
Jennifer Parkes; endorsed the District 3 Neighborhoods United Plan map and requested 
that the Task Force set the western boundary of District 3 as Van Ness Avenue. 
May (Better Housing Policy); requested that the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods be included together in District 10 and suggested that areas west of 14th 
Avenue and Lowell High School be included in District 4. 
Allen (Better Housing Policy); requested that the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods be included together in District 10 and suggested that areas west of 14th 
Avenue and Lowell High School be included in District 4. 
Michelle (Better Housing Policy); requested that the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods be included together in District 10 and suggested that areas west of 14th 
Avenue and Lowell High School be included in District 4. 
Andrew Math; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in 
District 2 rather than District 1, and requested that the Task Force expand the 
boundaries of District 1 to the east. 
Qi Dai (Better Housing Policy); requested that areas west of 14th Avenue in the Inner 
Sunset neighborhood and Lowell High School be included in District 4. 
Brian Quan (Chinese American Democratic Club); shared various concerns with the 
Task Force. 
Theresa Flandrich; requested that the Task Force recognize the voice of tenants in the 
Lower and Middle Polk neighborhoods. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, and Presidio Terrace 
neighborhoods in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Speaker; offered support for the 4B map and requested that areas west of 14th Avenue 
and Lowell High School be included in District 4. 
David Woo; requested that the Task Force recognize and retain the Inner Sunset 
neighborhood in District 5, suggested that the Task Force not include areas south of 
Sloat Boulevard in District 4, requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and 
Presidio Terrace neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1, and suggested that 
the District 1 boundaries be expanded to the east toward Anza Vista. 
Linda; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, West Clay 
Park, and Jordan Park neighborhoods in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Paulina Fayer; offered opposition to the 4D map and endorsed the 4B map. 
Chelsea; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the voices of renters throughout the 
city during the redistricting process and suggested that the boundaries of District 4 be 
moved to the east into the Inner Sunset neighborhood. 
Ross; endorsed the District 10 Unity map submitted by the Potrero Boosters and 
requested that the Task Force recognize the Showplace Square, Dogpatch, Potrero Hill, 
and Bayview neighborhoods and retain them wholly within District 10. 
Clair Lau (Chinese Progressive Association); requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6, suggested that the 
areas south of Market Street which are included in District 3 be smaller. 
Eric Lee; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 4, 2022 
 
 

 Page 8 

Simon Timony (Advocates Eleven); endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 11 
boundaries and requested that the Task Force include the Oceanview, Merced Heights, 
and Ingleside (OMI) neighborhoods in District 11. 
Maya; requested that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the existing 
District 5 together within the new District 5 map. 
Sandy; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Denis Mosgofian; requested that the Task Force recognize the Inner Sunset 
neighborhood and retain it District 5 rather than Districts 4 or 7. 
Judy Young, Executive Director (Southeast Asian Development Center); endorsed the 4D 
map and requested that the Task Force recognize the Little Saigon and Tenderloin 
neighborhoods and retain them wholly together within District 6. 
Jeremy Chan (Japantown Task Force); requested that the Task Force recognize the 
Japantown community, including the JCYC Chibi Chan Preschool, and retain it wholly 
within District 5 along with the Western Addition and Fillmore neighborhoods. 
June (Better Housing Policy); supported for the 4B map and requested that areas west 
of 14th Avenue and Lowell High School be included in District 4 and suggested that the 
Portola and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods be included in District 10. 
Luis Barrona; requested that the Task Force keep the Lower Haight neighborhood 
wholly within District 5. 
Nick Podell; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Jeff Rigo; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, West Clay 
Park neighborhoods and the Lake Street corridor in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force include the Jordan Park neighborhood with 
District 1 rather than District 2. 
Chuck Obermeyer; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhoods in 
District 1 rather than District 2. 
Bruce Wolfe; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 5 boundaries and requested 
that the Inner Sunset not be included in District 7. 
Speaker (Better Housing Policy); offered support for the 4B map and requested that 
areas west of 14th Avenue and Lowell High School be included in District 4. 
Brad Solomon; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Jordan Park, and 
Presidio Terrace neighborhoods and the Lake Street corridor in District 1 rather than 
District 2. 
Speaker (Better Housing Policies); endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the District 10 
boundaries and requested that the Task Force requested that areas west of 14th Avenue 
and Lowell High School be included in District 4. 
Peter; requested that the Task Force consider future population growth for the district 
boundaries, requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood and Lake 
Street corridor in District 1 rather than District 2. 
John DeCastro; endorsed the District 10 Unity map submitted by the Potrero Boosters 
and suggested that the Task Force not use the freeways as the borders between district 
boundaries. 
Danny Wong; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
May; requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods and retain them together in District 10, endorsed the 4B map as pertains 
to the District 10 boundaries and requested that the Task Force include that areas west 
of 14th Avenue and Lowell High School be included in District 4. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 4, 2022 
 
 

 Page 9 

Speaker (Better Housing Policy); endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the Portola and 
Visitacion Valley neighborhoods requested that the Task Force include portions of the 
Inner Sunset neighborhood west of 14th Avenue and Lowell High School in District 4. 
Marina; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood and areas north 
of Lake Street in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Danielle Love; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 5 boundaries with 
adjustments to the Lower Haight neighborhood boundaries. 
Steven Depant-Kelani Currier; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force include Lowell HS in D4. 
David Hooper; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 11 boundaries with 
adjustments. 
Marc Powell; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force include the 
Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, and West Clay Park neighborhoods in District 2 rather than 
District 1. 
Leslie Podell; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force include the 
Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, and West Clay Park neighborhoods in District 1 rather than 
District 2. 
Susie Kagami (Japantown Cultural District); shared various concerns with the Task 
Force in regard to the District 5 boundaries and the Japantown neighborhood. 
Frank Noto; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force recognize the Inner 
Sunset and retain it wholly within one supervisorial district. 
Curtis; requested that the Task Force recognize the Japantown community and retain it 
wholly within District 5. 
Speaker; endorsed the District 3 Neighborhoods United Plan map and requested that the 
Task Force recognize the Russian Hill and North Beach neighborhoods and retain them 
together wholly within District 3 with a western boundary at Van Ness Avenue. 
Dennis Minnik, President (Sunset Heights Association of Responsible People SHARP); 
endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 7 boundaries and requested that the Task 
Force recognize the Inner Sunset neighborhood and retain the area wholly withing one 
supervisorial district. 
Speaker; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition 
requested that the Task Force include areas north of Lake Street in District 2 rather than 
District 1, and that the District 1 boundaries be moved eastward toward Anza Vista. 
Alison Heath; endorsed the 4D map and endorsed the District 10 Unity map submitted by 
the Potrero Boosters as pertains to the District 10 boundaries. 
Robyn Tucker (Pacific Avenue Neighborhood Association); requested that the Task Force 
use Van Ness Avenue as the western boundary for District 3. 
Madison; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the Districts 3 and 6 boundaries. 
Cliff Barker; requested that the Potrero Hill, Dogpatch, and Showplace Square 
neighborhoods be retained together in District 10. 
Mark Deitrich; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, and 
West Clay Park neighborhoods in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Potrero Hill and Dogpatch 
neighborhoods together in District 10. 
Naj Daniels; requested that the Task Force recognize the area of Potrero Avenue, 16th 
Street to the bay waterfront, Highway 101, Mansell Avenue to Bayshore Avenue, Geneva 
Avenue, Potrero Hill, Bayview Hunters Point, and Sunnydale as a community of interest 
and retain it wholly within District 10. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 4, 2022 
 
 

 Page 10 

Edward Wright, President (Harvey Milk LGBTQ Democratic Club); shared various 
concerns with the Task Force. 
Jen Tse (League of Women Voters San Francisco); requested that the Task Force begin 
live line drawing. 
Philippe Sonne (Barbary Coast Neighborhood Association); shared various concerns 
with the Task Force. 
Lauren Girardin; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force include the 
Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, and areas north of Lake Street in District 2 rather than 
District 1. 
Jason Henderson; endorsed the 4D map with adjustments to include the Lower Haight 
neighborhood wholly within District 5. 
Josephine; endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the District 10 boundaries and requested 
that the Task Force recognize the Portola and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods and 
retain them together wholly within District 10, and requested that the Task Force include 
areas west of 14th Avenue in District 4. 

 
Chair Townsend recessed the meeting beginning at 1:57 a.m., and reconvened the meeting 
at 2:23 a.m., Tuesday, April 5, 2022 

 
After Chair Townsend closed public comment the Task Force directed Q2 Data and 
Research to make adjustments to the 4D map as follows: 
 

• Add Treasure Island to District 6; 
• Add the area bounded by 10th Street, Howard Street, the 101 Freeway, and 

Market Street to District 5; 
• Add the area bounded by Wan Ness Avenue, Turk Street, Polk Street, and 

Elm to District 6; 
• Add the area bounded by Howard Street, 11th Street, Folsom Street, 

Norfolk, Harrison Street, and 13th Street to District 9; 
• Add the area bounded by Geary Boulevard, Mason Street, O’Farrell Street, 

and Taylor Street to District 3; 
• Add Fox Plaza to District 5; 
• Add the Lower Polk Community Benefit District to District 3; 
• Add portions of the Cathedral Hill neighborhood to District 2, with 

boundaries of Pine Street, Van Ness Avenue, Post Street, Franklin Street, 
and Gough Street; 

• Add the northern waterfront north of Bay Street to District 2; 
• Add portions of the Russian Hill neighborhood to District 3, with boundaries 

on Van Ness Avenue north of Union Street and south of Bay Street; 
• Add portions of the Cathedral Hill neighborhood to District 2, with 

boundaries on Ellis Street, Gough Street, and Van Ness Avenue; 
• Add areas north of Columbus Avenue to the bay waterfront to District 3. 
• Add the area bounded by Van Ness Avenue, Broadway Avenue, and Jones 

Street to District 2. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 4, 2022 
 
 

 Page 11 

 
Member Cooper, seconded by Member Pierce, moved that a boundary be set 
between Districts 2 and 3 on Van Ness Avenue, Broadway Avenue, Jones Street, 
Columbus Avenue, and Leavenworth Street to the bay waterfront.  The motion 
failed by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 4 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Cooper 

 
Noes: 5 -  Castillon, Townsend, Ho, Chasel Lee, Reiner 

 
Member Castillion directed Q2 Data and Research to make further adjustments to 
the 4D map as follows: 
 

• Add areas east of Van Ness Avenue to District 3; 
• Add the East Cut neighborhood into District 6; 
• Add the Tenderloin neighborhood north of Market Street into District 5; 
• Add the Hub neighborhood into District 6; and 
• Add the Dogpatch neighborhood into District 6, with a boundary at Islais 

Creek. 
 
Chair Townsend recessed the meeting beginning at 1:57 a.m., and reconvened the meeting 
at 2:23 a.m., Tuesday, April 5, 2022 
 

Upon return from recess Member Castillion directed Q2 Data and Research to 
make further adjustments to the 4D map as follows: 
 

• Add the Dogpatch neighborhood back into District 10;  
• Add the Hub neighborhood back into District 5; 
• Add the Tenderloin neighborhood back into District 6. 

 
Member Chasel Lee directed Q2 Data and Research to make further adjustments to 
the 4D map as follows: 
 

• Add the areas bounded by Grove Street, Market Street, 8th Street. 
 

This change was not committed to the 4D map. 
 
Member Castillon, seconded by Member Ho, moved that the 4B map be moved 
forward for further consideration by the Task Force.  The motion carried by the 
following vote: 
 
Ayes: 6 -  Castillon, Townsend, Ho, Cooper, Chasel Lee, Reiner 
 
Noes: 3 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce 

 
Jaime Clark, Redistricting Consultant (Q2 Data and Research); offered that she would save the 
progress on the 4D map and that the result would be titled the 4DA map. The 4DA map appears 
on the following page of these minutes. 



San Francisco Redistricting Task Force
Board of Supervisors Redistricting

Map 4 DA;  April 4, 2022

District label shows district name, % deviation, total deviation.
This is a preliminary version of San Francisco’s Board of Supervisors districts and is not the final map of the Redistricting Task Force. This is a preliminary version, not a final draft.



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 4, 2022 
 
 

 Page 13 

 
Chair Townsend requested that Agenda Item Nos. 3 through 7 be heard together. 
 
Member Castillon was noted absent at 3:12 a.m., Tuesday, April 5, 2022, and for the remainder 
of the meeting 

 
3. Q2 Redistricting Consultants Update 

 
There was no Q2 Redistricting Consultants Update offered. 
 
Speakers: Josephine; shared various concerns with the Task Force. Cheryl Thornton; 
offered opposition to the Task Force’s decision to move end work on the 4D map. Emily 
Lee; offered opposition to the Task Force’s decision to move end work on the 4D map. 
Chuck Obermeyer; shared various concerns with the Task Force. Lauren Girardin 
(League of Women Voters San Francisco); supported the 4D map and suggested that the 
Russian Hill neighborhood be included wholly within District 2 rather than District 1. 
Jen Tse (League of Women Voters San Francisco); requested that the Task Force record 
the simultaneous translation rooms and post the recordings for public review. Mark; 
shared various concerns with the Task Force. Bobak Esfandiari; suggested that the Task 
Force use the 5% population deviation allowance to keep communities of interest whole. 
Bruce Wolfe; shared various concerns with the Task Force in regard to meeting 
accessibility and remote meetings. 
 
Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 
 

4. Task Force Member Reports and City Department Representative/Public Official 
Reports 

 
There were no Task Force member reports offered. 
 
Speakers: Josephine; shared various concerns with the Task Force. Cheryl Thornton; 
offered opposition to the Task Force’s decision to move end work on the 4D map. Emily 
Lee; offered opposition to the Task Force’s decision to move end work on the 4D map. 
Chuck Obermeyer; shared various concerns with the Task Force. Lauren Girardin 
(League of Women Voters San Francisco); supported the 4D map and suggested that the 
Russian Hill neighborhood be included wholly within District 2 rather than District 1. 
Jen Tse (League of Women Voters San Francisco); requested that the Task Force record 
the simultaneous translation rooms and post the recordings for public review. Mark; 
shared various concerns with the Task Force. Bobak Esfandiari; suggested that the Task 
Force use the 5% population deviation allowance to keep communities of interest whole. 
Bruce Wolfe; shared various concerns with the Task Force in regard to meeting 
accessibility and remote meetings. 
 
Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 4, 2022 
 
 

 Page 14 

 
5. Approval of Minutes from the Special Meetings of March 23 and 25, 2022 

 
There were no changes to the minutes for the Special Meetings of March 23 and 25, 2022 
offered. 
 
Speakers: Josephine; shared various concerns with the Task Force. Cheryl Thornton; 
offered opposition to the Task Force’s decision to move end work on the 4D map. Emily 
Lee; offered opposition to the Task Force’s decision to move end work on the 4D map. 
Chuck Obermeyer; shared various concerns with the Task Force. Lauren Girardin 
(League of Women Voters San Francisco); supported the 4D map and suggested that the 
Russian Hill neighborhood be included wholly within District 2 rather than District 1. 
Jen Tse (League of Women Voters San Francisco); requested that the Task Force record 
the simultaneous translation rooms and post the recordings for public review. Mark; 
shared various concerns with the Task Force. Bobak Esfandiari; suggested that the Task 
Force use the 5% population deviation allowance to keep communities of interest whole. 
Bruce Wolfe; shared various concerns with the Task Force in regard to meeting 
accessibility and remote meetings. 
 
Member Pierce, seconded by Member Cooper, moved that the March 23 
and 25, 2022, meeting minutes be APPROVED.  The motion carried by the 
following vote: 
 
Ayes: 9 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Townsend, Ho, Cooper,  

Chasel Lee, Reiner 
 
Absent: 1 -  Castillon 
 

6. General Public Comment 
 
Speakers: Josephine; shared various concerns with the Task Force. Cheryl Thornton; 
offered opposition to the Task Force’s decision to move end work on the 4D map. Emily 
Lee; offered opposition to the Task Force’s decision to move end work on the 4D map. 
Chuck Obermeyer; shared various concerns with the Task Force. Lauren Girardin 
(League of Women Voters San Francisco); supported the 4D map and suggested that the 
Russian Hill neighborhood be included wholly within District 2 rather than District 1. 
Jen Tse (League of Women Voters San Francisco); requested that the Task Force record 
the simultaneous translation rooms and post the recordings for public review. Mark; 
shared various concerns with the Task Force. Bobak Esfandiari; suggested that the Task 
Force use the 5% population deviation allowance to keep communities of interest whole. 
Bruce Wolfe; shared various concerns with the Task Force in regard to meeting 
accessibility and remote meetings. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 4, 2022 
 
 

 Page 15 

 
7. Future Agenda Items 

 
There were no future agenda items offered. 
 
Speakers: Josephine; shared various concerns with the Task Force. Cheryl Thornton; 
offered opposition to the Task Force’s decision to move end work on the 4D map. Emily 
Lee; offered opposition to the Task Force’s decision to move end work on the 4D map. 
Chuck Obermeyer; shared various concerns with the Task Force. Lauren Girardin 
(League of Women Voters San Francisco); supported the 4D map and suggested that the 
Russian Hill neighborhood be included wholly within District 2 rather than District 1. 
Jen Tse (League of Women Voters San Francisco); requested that the Task Force record 
the simultaneous translation rooms and post the recordings for public review. Mark; 
shared various concerns with the Task Force. Bobak Esfandiari; suggested that the Task 
Force use the 5% population deviation allowance to keep communities of interest whole. 
Bruce Wolfe; shared various concerns with the Task Force in regard to meeting 
accessibility and remote meetings. 

 
Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 
 

8. Adjournment 
 

There being no further business, the Redistricting Task Force adjourned at the hour 
of 3:16 a.m., Tuesday April 5, 2022. 
 
N.B. The Minutes of this meeting set forth all actions taken by the Redistricting Task 
Force on the matters stated, but not necessarily in the chronological sequence in which 
the matters were taken up. 



 
REDISTRICTING TASK FORCE 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 
MINUTES 

 
 

City Hall, Room 406 
(remote access provided) 

(remote public comment provided via teleconference) 
www.sfgovtv.org  

 
April 6, 2022 – 5:30 PM 

 
Special Meeting 

 
Members: Jeremy Lee, Jose Maria (Chema) Hernández Gil, J. Michelle Pierce, Matthew 

Castillon, Arnold Townsend, Lily Ho, Raynell Cooper, Chasel Lee, Ditka Reiner 
 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
The Redistricting Task Force met in special session, in-person with remote access and 
public comment via telephone and videoconference, on Wednesday, April 6, 2022. Chair 
Reverend Arnold Townsend called the meeting to order at 5:40 p.m. 
 
On the call of the roll, Chair Townsend, Member Jeremy Lee, Member Hernández Gil, 
Member Pierce, Member Castillon, Member Ho, Member Cooper, Member Chasel Lee, 
and Member Reiner were noted present.   
 
A quorum was present. 

 
2. Mapping 

 
Member Chasel Lee provided a presentation on mapping and public input, including an 
overview of the redistricting process, important criteria for redistricting, recognized 
neighborhoods and communities of interest, compactness, contiguity, census geography, 
and the next steps for the Task Force. Jaime Clark, Redistricting Consultant (Q2 Data 
and Research); performed the live line drawing and answered questions raised 
throughout the discussion. 

 
Chair Townsend recessed the meeting beginning at 8:25 p.m., and reconvened the meeting at 
8:43 p.m. 

 

http://www.sfgovtv.org/


Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 6, 2022 
 
 

 Page 2 

 
Speakers: Walter Caplan; requested that the Task Force recognize the neighborhoods of 
Lakeshore Acres and Merced Manor and retain them wholly within District 7. 
Naj Daniels; requested that the Task Force recognize the Potrero Hill neighborhood and 
retain it wholly within District 10. 
Jim Warshell; requested that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the 
existing District 5 together within the new District 5 map. 
Allen; shared various concern with the Task Force in regard to the political process and 
the engagement between voters and elected officials. 
Bob Harrer (Barbary Coast Neighborhood Association); endorsed the 4B map and the 
endorsed the District 3 Neighborhoods United Plan map. 
Diana Taylor; endorsed the 4B map and the endorsed the District 3 Neighborhoods 
United Plan map with a wester border of District 3 at Van Ness Avenue. 
Betty Louie (Chinatown Merchants Association); endorsed the 4B map and the endorsed 
the District 3 Neighborhoods United Plan map. 
Ashlyn Ferguson; requested that the Task Force include both sides of Valencia Street in 
District 8. 
Tyler MacNiven; requested that the Task Force include both sides of Valencia Street in 
District 8. 
Manny Yekutiel; requested that the Task Force include both sides of Valencia Street in 
District 8. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force include both sides of Valencia Street in District 8. 
Joe Demeta; requested that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting 
power among supervisorial districts. 
Madison Tam (Chinese American Democratic Club); requested that the Task Force 
include the Seacliff neighborhood in District 1 rather than District 2, and suggested that 
the Portola and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods be included in District 10. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the existing 
District 5 together within the new District 5 map. 
Race Bannon; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6, suggested adding 
Treasure Island in District 3, and suggested including Russian Hill in District 2. 
Tab Buckner; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force include Cathedral 
Hill in District 2, and include the Inner Sunset in District 5 with a boundary at Funston 
Avenue. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map. 
Cheryl Thornton; requested that the Task Force mind the Voting Rights Act of 1965, 
requested that the Task Force include the Potrero Hill neighborhood wholly within 
District 10, and requested that the Task Force not include the Portola neighborhood in 
District 9. 
Cheryl Jackson; shared various concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting 
process. 
Renee Curran; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map 
Coalition and the 4D map, requested that the Task Force retain the central 
neighborhoods of the existing District 5 together within the new District 5 map, and 
shared various concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Lori Leiderman; endorsed the 4D map and offered opposition to the 4B map, requested 
that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the existing District 5 together 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 6, 2022 
 
 

 Page 3 

within the new District 5 map, and shared various concerns regarding transparency in 
the redistricting process. 
Julie Pitta; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, and 
West Clay Park neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Don Misumi (Richmond District Rising); endorsed the Community Unity map submitted 
by the SF Unity Map Coalition, requested that the Task Force recognize the voices of 
working class people throughout the city, and shared concerns regarding transparency in 
the redistricting process. 
Eva Lee (Chinatown Merchants Association); endorsed the District 3 Neighborhoods 
United Plan map as pertains to the District 3 boundaries, with boundaries on Van Ness 
Avenue and Market Street. 
Alex; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Angel; requested that the Task Force retain the Leather LGBTQ Cultural District wholly 
within one supervisorial district. 
Dennis Mosgofian; endorsed the 4D map, requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district, and 
requested that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the existing District 5 
together within the new District 5 map. 
Gary McCoy; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Bobak Esfandiari; requested that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting 
power among supervisorial districts. 
Jupiter Peraza; shared various concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting 
process and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Steven Torres (Castro Cultural District); endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the 
District 8 boundaries with adjustments. 
Steve Leeds; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map 
Coalition, the 4D map, and offered opposition to the 4B map. 
Wussim Hage (Arab Resource Organizing Center); endorsed the 4D map, offered 
opposition to the 4B map, and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and 
Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Curtis Bradford, Co-Chair (Tenderloin Peoples Congress); endorsed the 4D map and 
shared various concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Larry Yee; endorsed the District 3 Neighborhoods United Plan map as pertains to the 
District 3 boundaries and the Chinatown neighborhood. 
Andrew Sun; requested that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting 
power among supervisorial districts. 
Gabby; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process, suggested 
that the Russian Hill neighborhood be included wholly within District 2, and requested 
that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the existing District 5 together 
within the new District 5 map. 
Jaime Deloria; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6. 
David Woo; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Tes Welborn; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Meg Heisler (Tenderloin Neighborhood Development Corporation); endorsed the 4D 
map and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 6, 2022 
 
 

 Page 4 

neighborhoods together in District 6 along with the three cultural districts of the 
Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the working class residents throughout 
the city, shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process, and 
suggested that Potrero Hill and the Chase Center be included in District 10. 
Nate; endorsed the 4D map, offered opposition to the 4B map, shared concerns 
regarding transparency in the redistricting process, and requested that the Task Force 
retain the central neighborhoods of the existing District 5 together within the new 
District 5 map. 
Colleen Rebecca; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Matthew; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin 
and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Alec Bash (Gateway Tenants Association); shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Alex; endorsed the 4D map. 
Jonah Buffa; requested that the Task Force set the boundary between Districts 8 and 9 as 
Valencia Street. 
Charles Rathbone; endorsed the 4B map and suggested that Treasure Island be included 
in District 6. 
Sally Stephens; endorsed the 4D map and suggested that the Task Force retain the Irving 
Street commercial corridor wholly within District 7. 
Paulina Fayer; endorsed the 4B map and offered opposition to the 4D map and requested 
that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Bettina Cohen; endorsed the 4B map, requested that the Task Force draw district lines to 
equalize the voting power among supervisorial districts, and requested that the Task 
Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 5. 
Art Persyko (San Francisco Gray Panthers); endorsed the 4D map and requested that the 
Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one 
supervisorial district 
Russel Morine; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain Potrero 
Hill wholly within District 10 and the Portola neighborhood wholly within District 9, and 
suggested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods 
together in one supervisorial district. 
Eileen Boken (Sunset Parkside Education and Action Committee SPEAK); shared various 
concerns with the Task Force. 
Dr. Emily Murase (Japantown Task Force); requested that the Task Force recognize the 
Japantown community and retain it wholly within District 5 with a northern border at 
California Street to include the JCYC Chibi Chan preschool. 
Tony Westley (North Beach Neighbors); endorsed the District 3 Neighborhoods United 
Plan map as pertains to the District 3 boundaries with borders at Van Ness Avenue and 
Market Street. 
Daphne Alden; endorsed the 4B map, requested that the Task Force draw district lines to 
equalize the voting power among supervisorial districts, requested that the Task Force 
include the Seacliff neighborhood in District 1 rather than District 2, and requested that 
the Task Force retain the Inner Sunset wholly within one supervisorial district. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map, requested that the Task Force not include the Lakeshore 
and Merced Manor neighborhoods in District 4, and requested that the Task Force 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 6, 2022 
 
 

 Page 5 

recognize the Inner Sunset neighborhood and retain it wholly within one supervisorial 
district. 
Marina; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force draw district lines to 
equalize the voting power among supervisorial districts, requested that the Task Force 
include the Seacliff neighborhood and areas north of Lake Street in District 1 rather than 
District 2, and requested that the Task Force recognize the Inner Sunset neighborhood 
and retain it wholly within District 7. 
Glynnis Nakahara (Japantown Task Force); requested that the Task Force recognize the 
Japantown community and retain it wholly within District 5. 
Grant Ingram; endorsed the 4B map, requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff 
neighborhood and areas north of Lake Street in District 1 rather than District 2, and 
requested that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting power among 
supervisorial districts. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map and offered opposition to the 4B map. 
Jackie; requested that the Task Force retain the North Beach and Chinatown 
neighborhoods together in District 3, include the Russian Hill neighborhood wholly 
within District 2, and requested that the Task Force not include the Tenderloin 
neighborhood to District 5. 
Gilbert Criswell; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Ross Minot; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 10 boundaries and offered 
opposition to the 4B map. 
Chelsea Waite; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force draw district 
lines to equalize the voting power among supervisorial districts. 
Theresa Palmer; endorsed the 4D map and offered opposition to the 4B map, and 
requested that the Task Force recognize the Haight Ashbury and Western Addition 
neighborhoods and retain them together wholly within one supervisorial district. 
Simony Timony (Advocates Eleven); endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the District 11 
boundaries with an adjustment to include census tract 9749 in District 11. 
Jeremy Chan (Japantown Task Force); requested that the Task Force retain the 
Japantown neighborhood wholly within District 5 along with the Western Addition 
neighborhood. 
PJ; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and 
Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Regina Islais; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map 
Coalition and the 4D map, requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio 
Terrace, and West Clay Park neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1, 
requested that the Task Force not include the Tenderloin neighborhood to District 5. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map and offered opposition to the 4B map, requested that the 
Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one 
supervisorial district, and suggested that the Task Force not include Treasure Island in 
District 6. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Dena Aslani Williams; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Peter; endorsed the 4D map, requested that the Task Force retain the central 
neighborhoods of the existing District 5 together within the new District 5 map, and 
shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Jasmine Yan (Chinese American Democratic Club); endorsed he 4B map, and requested 
that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood and areas north of Lake Street in 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 6, 2022 
 
 

 Page 6 

District 1 rather than District 2, requested that the Task Force include the Inner Sunset 
and Golden Gate Heights wholly within District 7. 
Carla; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process and offered 
opposition to the 4B map. 
Adam Pagalata; requested that the Task Force recognize the new communities of 
southern SOMA area and retain them wholly within one supervisorial district. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Sana Sethi (San Francisco Rising); endorsed the 4D map and offered opposition to 
the 4B map and shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Francisco Herrera; offered opposition to the 4B map and endorsed the 4D map and 
endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition. 
Meriam Zouzounis; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central 
SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Kevin Ortiz (San Francisco Latinx Democratic Club); endorsed the 4D map and the 
endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition, and 
offered opposition to the 4B map. 
David Elliott Lewis; endorsed the 4D map and offered opposition to the 4B map, shared 
concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process, and requested that the Task 
Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one 
supervisorial district. 
Speaker; offered opposition to the 4B map and endorsed the 4D map shared concerns 
regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Nancy Tung; endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods. 
Jonathan Meade; endorsed the 4D map, offered opposition to the 4B map, and shared 
concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4B map and offered opposition to the 4D map. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map and offered opposition to the 4B map, shared concerns 
regarding transparency in the redistricting process, and requested that the Task Force 
retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial 
district. 
Larissa Pedroncelli; endorsed the 4D map, requested that the Task Force include both 
sides of Valencia Street in District 9. 
Tracy Sylvester; requested that the Task Force use Valencia Street as the border between 
Districts 8 and 9. 
Marie; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff 
neighborhood in District 1 rather than District 2. 
William Walker; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force honor the 
Ocean Avenue boundary for Districts 7 and 11. 
David Brockman; endorsed the 4B map and offered opposition to the 4D map and 
requested that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting power among 
supervisorial districts. 
Chris Chang; endorsed the 4B map. 
Edward Wright, President (Harvey Milk LGBTQ Democratic Club); shared concerns 
regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Lily; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 6, 2022 
 
 

 Page 7 

Tiffany Ng (Chinese Progressive Association); endorsed the 4D map and offered 
opposition to the 4B map, requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin, Central 
SOMA, and Treasure Island neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district, 
suggested that the Task Force include Russian Hill wholly within District 2. 
Dr. Monique Lasar (Rafiki Coalition); requested that the Task Force retain the central 
neighborhoods of the existing District 5 together within the new District 5 map and retain 
the Black communities throughout the city whole. 
Marlene Tran (Chinese American Democratic Club); endorsed the 4B map as pertains to 
the District 10 boundaries. 
Karen Pierce; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force not include the 
Portola neighborhood in District 10. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in District 2 
rather than District 1. 
Sheila Dolan; endorsed the 4B map, requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff 
neighborhood in District 1 rather than District 2, and requested that the Task Force 
draw district lines to equalize the voting power among supervisorial districts. 
Joshua; endorsed the 4D map and offered opposition to the 4B map, requested that the 
Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one 
supervisorial district, shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting 
process. 
Stephanie; endorsed the 4B map, requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff 
neighborhood in District 1 rather than District 2, and requested that the Task Force 
draw district lines to equalize the voting power among supervisorial districts. 
Speaker; offered opposition to the 4D map requested that the Task Force draw district 
lines to equalize the voting power among supervisorial districts, and requested that the 
Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Alex Wong; offered opposition to the 4D map and endorsed the 4B map. 
Jason Lee; endorsed the 4D map. 
Speaker; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process, requested 
that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in 
District 6 with a boundary at 2nd Street. 
Phillippe Sonne; endorsed the District 3 Neighborhoods United Plan map and the 4B 
map as pertains to District 3. 
Gabe Goffman; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Curtis Wu; endorsed the 4D map, requested that the Task Force retain the Japantown 
neighborhood wholly within District 5 and not split the area between Districts 2 and 5, 
and suggested that the Task Force include the Russian Hill neighborhood in wholly 
within District 2. 
Jason Henderson; offered opposition to the 4B map and requested that the Task Force 
retain the central neighborhoods of the existing District 5 together within the new 
District 5 map. 
Chuck Obermeyer; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Angelica Cabande (SOMCAN); endorsed the 4D map and offered opposition to the 4B 
map and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Josephine Zhao; gave an overview of the mapping decisions pending for the Task Force. 
Jennifer Parkes; requested that the Task Force include the Russian Hill neighborhood in 
District 3. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 6, 2022 
 
 

 Page 8 

Christin Evans; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force include the 
Seacliff and Presidio Terrace neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Erick Arguello (Calle 24 Latino Cultural District); endorsed the 4D map and 
recommended that District 9 have a boundary at Guerrero Street. 

 
Chair Townsend recessed the meeting beginning at 1:48 a.m., and reconvened the meeting 
at 2:26 a.m. 
 

The Task Force directed Q2 Data and Research to explore adjustments to the 4B 
map as follows: 
 

• Add areas bounded by Harrison Street, 9th Street, and Market Street to 
District 5; 

• Add the area bounded by Post Street, Ellis Street, Gough Street, and Van 
Ness Avenue to District 2; 

• Add the area bounded by Oak Street, Webster Street, Haight Street, Octavia 
Street, and Gough Street to District 5; 

• Add the Yerba Buena Community Benefit District to District 6; 
• Add the Cole Valley neighborhood to District 8; 
• Add the area around Kezar Stadium within Golden Gate Park to District 8; 

and 
• Add portions of the HOPE SF sites in Potrero Hill to District 10. 

 
 
Member Hernández Gil, seconded by Member Pierce, moved that the Japantown 
Cultural District be included wholly within District 5.  The motion failed by the 
following vote: 
 
Ayes: 4 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Reiner 
 
Noes: 5 -  Castillon, Townsend, Ho, Cooper, Chasel Lee 
 
Member Hernández Gil, seconded by Member Jeremy Lee, moved that areas south 
of Sloat Boulevard be moved into District 7 and that the District 4 boundaries in the 
Inner Sunset be moved eastward.  The motion failed by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 4 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Cooper 
 
Noes: 5 -  Castillon, Townsend, Ho, Chasel Lee, Reiner 
 
Member Hernández Gil, seconded by Member Pierce, moved that Potrero Hill be 
included wholly within District 10 with a boundary at 16th Street.  The motion 
carried by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 5 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Townsend, Cooper 
 
Noes: 4 -  Castillon, Ho, Chasel Lee, Reiner 
 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 6, 2022 
 
 

 Page 9 

 
Member Castillon, seconded by Member Chasel Lee, moved that the Yerba Buena 
Community Benefit District be included wholly within District 6, and that areas 
bounded by Carolina Street, 22nd Street, and Interstate 280 be added to District 10.  
Due to the fact that the previous motion prevailed, the portion of this motion which 
pertains to areas within Potrero Hill are mooted.  The motion carried by the 
following vote: 
 
Ayes: 5 -  Castillon, Townsend, Ho, Chasel Lee, Reiner 
 
Noes: 4 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Cooper 
 
Member Pierce, seconded by Member Jeremy Lee, moved that Treasure Island be 
included in District 3.  The motion failed by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 3 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce 
 
Noes: 6 -  Castillon, Townsend, Ho, Cooper, Chasel Lee, Reiner 
 
Member Hernández Gil, seconded by Member Jeremy Lee, moved that the Seacliff 
and Presidio Terrace neighborhoods be included in District 2 along the 2012 district 
lines, that Lone Mountain be included in District 1, and that portions of the Anza 
Vista neighborhood be included in District 1.  The motion failed by the following 
vote: 
 
Ayes: 3 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce 
 
Noes: 6 -  Castillon, Townsend, Ho, Cooper, Chasel Lee, Reiner 
 

Jaime Clark, Redistricting Consultant (Q2 Data and Research); offered that she would save the 
changes made to the 4B map and that the result would be titled the 4BA map. The 4BA map 
appears on the following page of these minutes. 



San Francisco Redistricting Task Force
Board of Supervisors Redistricting

Map 4 BA; April 6, 2022

District label shows district name, % deviation, total deviation.
This is a preliminary version of San Francisco’s Board of Supervisors districts and is not the final map of the Redistricting Task Force. This is a preliminary version, not a final draft.



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 6, 2022 
 
 

 Page 11 

3. Q2 Redistricting Consultants Update 
 
Jaime Clark, Redistricting Consultant (Q2 Data and Research); presented an update on 
receipt of recent mapping and community of interest definition submissions. 
 
Speakers: Jen Tse (League of Women Voters San Francisco); David Elliott Lewis; shared 
various concern with the Task Force. 

 
At the conclusion of the discussion, Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 
 

4. Task Force Member Reports and City Department Representative/Public Official 
Reports 

 
Member Ho reported that she recently spoke with reporters from the San Francisco 
Standard. Member Jeremy Lee reported that he recently met with the API Council, 
advocates from District 9, San Francisco Rising, and reporters from Mission Local. 
Member Cooper reported that he recently met with San Francisco Rising, reporters from 
Mission Local, and the District 6 supervisor. Member Hernández Gil reported that he 
recently spoke to advocates from Districts 5, 6, 7, 9, and 10, provided updates on 
redistricting to the Districts 7 and 6 supervisors offices, and met with San Francisco 
Rising and SEIU Local 1021. Member Castillon reported that he recently met with the A. 
Philip Randolph Institute. Member Chasel Lee reported that he recently met with San 
Francisco Rising, the Barbary Coast Neighborhood Association, the Pacific Avenue 
Neighborhood Association, and the Russian Hill Neighborhood Association. Member 
Pierce reported that she recently met with San Francisco Rising, advocates from Russian 
Hill and Districts 1, 7 10, and 11. Vice Chair Reiner reported that she recently met with 
community advocates from Japantown, the Russian Hill Neighborhood Association, and 
the Valencia Merchants Association. Chair Townsend reported that he recently met with 
advocates Districts 10 and 5, San Francisco Rising, and SOMA Pilipinas. 
 
Speakers: None 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 
 

5. Impacts of Redistricting on Community Benefit Districts and Green Benefit Districts 
 
Chris Corgas (Office of Economic and Workforce Development); presented information 
on the Community Benefit District programs, and answered questions raised throughout 
the discussion. 
 
Speakers: Katina Johnson; shared various concerns about the East Cut Community 
Benefit District. William Walker; requested that the Task Force be mindful of the 
functioning of the Community Benefit Districts during the redistricting process. Jordan 
Mar (Ocean Avenue Association); shared various concerns about the operations of the 
Ocean Avenue Community Benefit District. Raymond How; shared various concerns 
about the operations of the Ocean Avenue Community Benefit District. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 6, 2022 
 
 

 Page 12 

6. Approval of Minutes from the Special Meeting of March 26, 2022 
 
Chair Townsend inquired whether any Member had any corrections to the Minutes of the 
March 26, 2022, special Meeting of the Redistricting Task Force. There were no 
corrections offered. 
 
Speakers:  None. 
 
Member Chasel Lee, seconded by Member Hernández Gil, moved that the 
March 26, 2022, meeting minutes be APPROVED.  The motion carried by the 
following vote: 
 
Ayes: 9 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Castillon, Townsend Ho, Cooper,  

Chasel Lee, Reiner 
 

7. General Public Comment 
 
Speakers: Curtis Bradford, Co-Chair (Tenderloin Peoples Congress); stated that the 
Tenderloin Peoples Congress wasn’t behind the recent calls for the Elections 
Commission to remove the three Task Force members appointed by the Elections 
Commission. Bobak Esfandiari; offered observations about the Elections Commission 
appointees to the Task Force, and shared various concerns with the Task Force. David 
Elliott Lewis; offered opposition to the 4B map and endorsed the 4D map. Speaker; 
requested that the Task Force recognize both established communities and new 
communities during the redistricting process. David Pilpel; requested that the Task 
Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Speaker; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 

 
At the conclusion of the discussion, Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 
 

8. Future Agenda Items 
 
Members discussed possible future agenda items as follows: 
• An action item condemning the Elections Commission action to consider removing 

the three Task Force members appointed by the Elections Commission. 
 
Ana Flores, Deputy City Attorney (Office of the City Attorney), answered questions 
raised throughout the discussion. 
 
Speakers: Speaker; shared concerns about the Elections Commission action item and 
supported the introduction of a resolution condemning the Elections Commission. 
William Walker; shared concerns about the Brown Act as pertains to the noticing 
requirements for special meetings of the Task Force. David Pilpel; shared concerns 
about the Elections Commission action and suggested that the Task Force agendize an 
item on the final report. Curtis Bradford, Co-Chair; shared various concerns with the 
Task Force. Speaker; shared concerns about the Brown Act as pertains to the noticing 
requirements for special meetings of the Task Force. 
 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 6, 2022 
 
 

 Page 13 

 
9. Adjournment 
 

There being no further business, the Redistricting Task Force adjourned at the hour 
of 3:21 a.m., Thursday, April 7, 2022. 
 
N.B. The Minutes of this meeting set forth all actions taken by the Redistricting Task 
Force on the matters stated, but not necessarily in the chronological sequence in which 
the matters were taken up. 



 
REDISTRICTING TASK FORCE 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 
MINUTES 

 
 

City Hall, Room 408 
(remote access provided) 

(remote public comment provided via teleconference) 
www.sfgovtv.org  

 
April 7, 2022 – 3:00 PM 

 
Special Meeting 

 
Members: Jeremy Lee, Jose Maria (Chema) Hernández Gil, J. Michelle Pierce, Matthew 

Castillon, Arnold Townsend, Lily Ho, Raynell Cooper, Chasel Lee, Ditka Reiner 
 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
The Redistricting Task Force met in special session, in-person with remote access and 
public comment via telephone and videoconference, on Thursday, April 7, 2022. Vice 
Chair Ditka Reiner called the meeting to order at 3:11 p.m. 
 
On the call of the roll, Chair Townsend, Member Jeremy Lee, Member Hernández Gil, 
Member Pierce, Member Castillon, Member Ho, Member Cooper, Member Chasel Lee, 
and Member Reiner were noted present.  Chair Townsend was noted not present. 
 
A quorum was present. 
 

Chair Townsend was noted present at 3:43 p.m. 
 
2. Mapping 

 
Member Chasel Lee provided a presentation on mapping and public input, including an 
overview of the redistricting process, important criteria for redistricting, recognized 
neighborhoods and communities of interest, compactness, contiguity, census geography, 
and the next steps for the Task Force. Andrew Shen, Deputy City Attorney (Office of the 
City Attorney); Jaime Clark, Redistricting Consultant (Q2 Data and Research); 
answered questions raised throughout the discussion. 

 
Speakers: Alec Bash; endorsed the District 3 Neighborhoods United Plan map, offered 
opposition to the 4D map, and endorsed the 4B map. 
Bobak Esfandiari; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, 
and West Clay Park neighborhoods in District 1 rather than District 2, and requested 

http://www.sfgovtv.org/


Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 7, 2022 
 
 

 Page 2 

that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting power among supervisorial 
districts. 
Jaime Deloria; requested that the Task Force recognize the marginalized communities of 
the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods and requested that the Task Force 
retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force make minimal changes 
to the district boundaries. 
Casey; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Walter Caplan; requested that the Task Force recognize the Stonestown shopping center, 
the Lakeshore Acres, and the Merced Manor neighborhood and requested that the area 
be included wholly within District 7. 
Peter; offered opposition to the 4B map and supported the 4D map and shared concerns 
regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Curtis Bradford, Co-Chair (Tenderloin Peoples Congress); shared various personal 
concerns with the Task Force, and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin, 
Central SOMA, and Treasure Island neighborhoods together in one District 6. 
Stefanie Chen; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map 
Coalition, requested that the Task Force include the Inner Sunset in District 4 rather 
than District 7, and requested that the Task Force not include areas south of Sloat 
Boulevard in District 4. 
Casey Ho; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition, 
requested that the Task Force include the Russian Hill neighborhood wholly within 
District 2 rather than District 3, and endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by 
the SF Unity Map Coalition. 
J. R. Eppler; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 10 boundaries. 
Sally; offered opposition to the 4B map, requested that the Task Force recognize the 
voices of residents of Single Room Occupancy (SRO) hotels and retain them wholly 
within one supervisorial district, and requested that the Task Force include the Russian 
Hill neighborhood wholly within District 2 rather than District 3. 
Speaker; offered opposition to the 4B map, requested that the Task Force recognize the 
voices of residents of Single Room Occupancy (SRO) hotels and retain them wholly 
within one supervisorial district, and requested that the Task Force include the Russian 
Hill neighborhood wholly within District 2 rather than District 3. 
Alice Rogers; offered opposition to the 4D map, endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the 
South Beach, Rincon Hill, and Mission Bay neighborhoods and requested that the Task 
Force draw district lines to equalize the voting power among supervisorial districts. 
Claire; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition 
and requested that the TF keep the core comms of D10 together. 
David Elliott Lewis; endorsed the 4D map and offered opposition to the 4B map, and 
requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods 
together in District 6. 
Karoline Hatch; supported the 4D map and shared concerns regarding transparency in 
the redistricting process. 
Speaker; thanked the Task Force for their service and offered support for the 4B map. 
Cynthia Gomez; endorsed the 4D map and offered opposition to the 4B map, and shared 
concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Kenyon Scott; endorsed the 4D map and offered opposition to the 4B map, and shared 
concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 7, 2022 
 
 

 Page 3 

Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the Filipino community of the 
Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods, and requested that the community be 
retained wholly within District 6. 
Eileen Boken (Sunset Parkside Education and Action Committee SPEAK); shared 
concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Caroline Constantino; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the 
central neighborhoods of the existing District 5 together within the new District 5 map. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff 
neighborhood in District 1, the Inner Sunset and Golden Gate Heights neighborhoods in 
District 7, and that the Portola and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods be united in 
District 10. 
Jessica; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in District 1 
rather than District 2. 
Joe Demeto; requested that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting 
power among supervisorial districts. 
Paulina Fayer; endorsed the 4B map and offered opposition to the 4D map. 
Marie Hurabiell; endorsed the 4B map and offered opposition to the 4D map. 
Chelsea Waite; endorsed the 4B map and offered opposition to the 4D map requested 
that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting power among supervisorial 
districts, endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff 
neighborhood in District 1, the Inner Sunset and Golden Gate Heights neighborhoods in 
District 7, and that the Portola and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods be united in one 
supervisorial district. 
Dr. Emily Murase; shared various concerns with the Task Force in regard to the The 
Sequoias, the Coventry Place senior living facilities and the Cathedral Hill 
neighborhood. 
Alan Buradel; endorsed the 4B map. 
Sarah Bancroft; offered opposition to the 4B map, and supported the 4D map as pertains 
to the vulnerable communities of the city. 
Marina Roach; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force include the 
Seacliff neighborhood in District 1, the Inner Sunset and Golden Gate Heights 
neighborhoods in District 7, and that the Portola and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods be 
united in one supervisorial district. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4BA map and requested that the Task Force draw district lines to 
equalize the voting power among supervisorial districts. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting power 
among supervisorial districts. 
Oliver Roup; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff 
neighborhood in District 1, the Inner Sunset and Golden Gate Heights neighborhoods in 
District 7, and that the Portola and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods be united in one 
supervisorial district. 
Eric Wu; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in District 1 
rather than District 2. 
Speaker; offered opposition to the 4D map, requested that the Task Force include the 
Tenderloin neighborhood in District 5 and requested that the Task Force draw district 
lines to equalize the voting power among supervisorial districts. 
Kane Hsieh; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Betty Louie; endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the District 3 boundaries. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 7, 2022 
 
 

 Page 4 

Dodie Crawford; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force include the 
Seacliff neighborhood in District 1, the Inner Sunset and Golden Gate Heights 
neighborhoods in District 7, and that the Portola and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods be 
united in one supervisorial district. 
Denise; offered opposition to the 4B map and endorsed the 4D map, and requested that 
the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the existing District 5 together within 
the new District 5 map. 
Grant Ingram; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force draw district 
lines to equalize the voting power among supervisorial districts. 
Wing Ho Lum; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
William Owen; endorsed the 4B map and offered opposition to the 4DA map as pertains 
to the Potrero Hill and Dogpatch neighborhoods. 
Bob Harrer; endorsed the 4B map and the District 3 Neighborhoods United Plan map, 
and requested that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting power among 
supervisorial districts. 
Diana Drue; endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the boundaries of District 6 and 
requested that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting power among 
supervisorial districts. 
Lois Scott; requested that the Task Force recognize the voices of residents of Single 
Room Occupancy (SRO) hotels and retain them wholly within one supervisorial district, 
requested that the Task Force not include the Tenderloin neighborhood to District 5. 
Speaker; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition 
and the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central 
SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Cristine Zaback (Forest Knolls Neighborhood Association); endorsed the 4D map as 
pertains to the Districts 7, 10, and 11 boundaries. 
Luke; offered opposition to the 4D map and supported the 4B map as pertains to the 
District 6 boundaries. 
Louise Whitlock; shared various concern with the Task Force. 
Cheryl Jackson; announced her plan for a proposed redistricting protection plan which 
would make district voting adjustments for voters in reaction to the redistricting process. 
George Wooding; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map 
Coalition and the 4B map, and requested that the Task Force include areas south of Sloat 
Boulevard in District 7 rather than District 4. 
Ken More; endorsed the 4D map and the Community Unity map submitted by the SF 
Unity Map Coalition, and the requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio 
Terrace, and West Clay Park neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Lanier; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff 
neighborhood in District 1, the Inner Sunset and Golden Gate Heights neighborhoods in 
District 7, and that the Portola and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods be united in one 
supervisorial district. 
Jen Wing; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff 
neighborhood and areas north of Lake Street in District 1, and suggested that the Inner 
Sunset and Golden Gate Heights neighborhoods in be included within District 7. 
Punit; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Curtis Wu; endorsed the 4D map, requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin 
and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district, requested that 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 7, 2022 
 
 

 Page 5 

the Task Force recognize the Japantown community and retain it wholly within 
District 5, and suggested that the Task Force include the Russian Hill neighborhood 
wholly within District 2. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood and areas 
north of Lake Street in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Julie Pitta; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, and 
West Clay Park neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Angela (Chinese Progressive Association); endorsed the Community Unity map 
submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition, requested that the Task Force recognize the 
low income renter residents of District 3 and hear their voices during the redistricting 
process, and suggested that the Task Force include the Russian Hill neighborhood wholly 
within District 2. 
Speaker (Chinese Progressive Association); endorsed the Community Unity map 
submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition, requested that the Task Force recognize the 
low income renter residents of District 3 and hear their voices during the redistricting 
process. 
Winnie (Chinese Progressive Association); endorsed the Community Unity map 
submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition, requested that the Task Force recognize the 
low income renter residents of District 3 and hear their voices during the redistricting 
process, suggested that the Task Force include the Russian Hill neighborhood wholly 
within District 2, requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6, and requested that the Task Force include the 
Oceanview, Merced Heights, and Ingleside (OMI) neighborhoods in District 11. 
Joyce Lam (Chinese Progressive Association); offered opposition to the 4B map and 
supported the 4D map. 
John McCormack; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting power 
among supervisorial districts. 
Mary Lau; shared concerns regarding the area around 3rd Avenue and Lake Street. 
Celestina; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Adam; offered opposition to the 4D map and endorsed the 4BA map, and requested that 
the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting power among supervisorial 
districts. 
Chris Chang; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force include the 
Seacliff neighborhood in District 1, the Inner Sunset and Golden Gate Heights 
neighborhoods in District 7, and that the Portola and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods be 
united in one supervisorial district, and requested that the Task Force retain the 
neighborhoods of eastern SOMA together within one supervisorial district. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force draw new district 
boundaries to anticipate future growth. 
Kim Tavaglione (San Francisco Labor Council); endorsed the 4D map and requested 
that the Task Force draw district lines based on the existing communities of the city. 
Evan Chan; requested that the Task Force retain the Lakeshore neighborhood wholly 
within District 4. 
Speaker (Chinese Progressive Association); endorsed the Community Unity map 
submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition and requested that the Task Force recognize 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 7, 2022 
 
 

 Page 6 

the low income renter residents of District 3 and hear their voices during the redistricting 
process. 
Jean Paul Torres; endorsed the 4D map. 
Adam Back; requested that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting 
power among supervisorial districts. 
Francisco da Costa; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central 
SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district and shared concerns 
regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Cheryl Thornton; endorsed the 4D map. 
Theresa Palmer; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map 
Coalition, requested that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the existing 
District 5 together within the new District 5 map, and shared concerns regarding 
transparency in the redistricting process. 
Peter Van Dyke; endorsed the 4D map and endorsed the Community Unity map 
submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition, requested that the Task Force prioritize 
marginalized communities throughout the city in the redistricting process, requested that 
the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one 
supervisorial district, and shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting 
process. 
Naj Daniels; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Jennifer Parkes (Russian Hill Neighbors); endorsed the 4B map and requested that the 
Task Force recognize the Russian Hill neighborhood and retain the area wholly within 
District 3. 
Edward Wright, President (Harvey Milk LGBTQ Democratic Club); offered opposition to 
the 4B map. 
Alison Heath; endorsed the 4D map and offered opposition to the 4B map. 
William Walker; endorsed the 4D map and endorsed the Community Unity map 
submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition, and requested that the Task Force not include 
the Dogpatch neighborhood in District 6. 
Monica Pinkston; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force recognize the 
Black community and Black voices throughout the city throughout the redistricting 
process. 
Michelle (Better Housing Policy); requested that the Task Force include Lowell Hight 
School within District 4. 
Allan (Better Housing Policy); requested that the Task Force include the Inner Sunset 
within District 4 with a boundary at 14th Avenue, requested that the Task Force include 
Lowell High School within District 4, and requested that the Task Force unite the Portola 
and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods within District 10. 
Amy (Better Housing Policy); requested that the Task Force include the Inner Sunset 
within District 4 with a boundary at 14th Avenue, requested that the Task Force include 
Lowell High School within District 4, and requested that the Task Force unite the Portola 
and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods within District 10. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4B map. 
Qi Dai (Better Housing Policy); requested that the Task Force include the Inner Sunset 
within District 4 with a boundary at 14th Avenue, requested that the Task Force include 
Lowell High School within District 4, and requested that the Task Force unite the Portola 
and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods within District 10. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 7, 2022 
 
 

 Page 7 

Theresa Flandrich (North Beach Tenants); requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district and 
requested that the Task Force include the Fisherman’s Wharf neighborhood in District 3 
rather than District 2. 
Majeid Crawford; endorsed the 4D map. 
Donovan Lacy; endorsed the District 10 Unity map submitted by the Potrero Boosters 
and the 4D map as pertains to the District 10 boundaries. 
Christin Evans; requested that the Task Force recognize the Haight-Ashbury 
neighborhood and retain it wholly within one supervisorial district. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 5 boundaries and requested 
that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the existing District 5 together 
within the new map. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 10. 
Peter Warfield; endorsed the 4D map with adjustments to the District 4 boundaries in the 
Inner Sunset. 
Joshua; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 6 boundaries and offered 
opposition to the 4B map as pertains to the District 5 boundaries, and shared concerns 
regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Speaker; offered opposition to the 4B map as pertains to the District 10 boundaries and 
requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in District 2 rather than 
District 1. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Michelle Mendoza; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map 
Coalition and the 4D map requested that the Task Force recognize the Latinx voice in the 
communities of the city. 
Francisco Herrera; endorsed the 4D map and offered opposition to the 4B map, and 
requested that the Task Force recognize the voices of working people of the city. 
Richard Cardillo; shared various concerns wit the Task Force. 
Nancy Tung; endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the District 6 boundaries, and 
requested that the Task Force include the Portola and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods 
wholly together within one supervisorial district. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Cliff Barker; requested that the Task Force retain the Potrero Hill and Dogpatch 
neighborhoods and retain them together in one supervisorial district. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force draw district lines to 
equalize the voting power among supervisorial districts. 
Simon Timony; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Jeff Rigo; requested that the Task Force recognize the Lakeshore and Merced Manor 
neighborhoods and retain them wholly within District 7, rather than District 4. 
Speaker (Better Housing Policy); requested that the Task Force include the Inner Sunset 
within District 4 with a boundary at 14th Avenue, requested that the Task Force include 
Lowell High School within District 4, and requested that the Task Force unite the Portola 
and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods within District 10. 
Jennifer Yan; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff 
neighborhood in District 1, the Inner Sunset and Golden Gate Heights neighborhoods in 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 7, 2022 
 
 

 Page 8 

District 7, and that the Portola and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods be united in one 
supervisorial district. 
Vanita Louie; endorsed the 4B map. 
Speaker; offered opposition to the 4B map and shared concerns regarding transparency 
in the redistricting process. 
Julie D. Soo; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Hillary Schiraldi; requested that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting 
power among supervisorial districts. 
John; offered opposition to the 4B map, requested that the Task Force not include the 
Tenderloin neighborhood in District 5, requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district, and 
requested that the Task Force recognize the Japantown community and retain it wholly 
within District 5. 
Caryl Ito; thanked the Task Force for their service and requested that the Task Force 
recognize the Japantown community and retain it wholly within District 5 with the 
Western Addition neighborhood. 
 

Chair Townsend recessed the meeting at 7:53 p.m., and reconvened the meeting at 8:41 p.m. 
 
Member Chasel Lee requested Q2 Data and Research to adjust the 4BA map for 
display to the Task Force with the following criteria: 
 

• Add the Portola neighborhood north of Mansell Street to District 9; 
• Add the area bounded by Mission Street north of Interstate 280, 

Valencia Street, 22nd Street, Guerrero Street, and Market Street to 
District 8; 

• Add part of Mint Hill east of Guerrero Street to District 9; 
• Add the area bounded by Fredrick Street, Buena Vista West around 

the north side of Buena Vista Park, Waller Street, Steiner Street, 
Hermann Street, Buchanan Street, Haight, Street, and Octavia Street 
to District 5; 

• Add the Dogpatch south of Mariposa Street to District 10; 
• Move the District 3 southern boundary to Market Street toward the 

Ferry Building; and 
• Add the area bounded by Market Street, 8th Street, Mason Street, 

and Geary Boulevard to District 6. 
 
Member Pierce, seconded by Member Ho, moved to adopt the changes to the 4BA map 
proposed by Member Chasel Lee above, and send the map as adjusted to the Task Force 
for further consideration on April 8, 2022.  Prior to the roll call on the motion, Member 
Pierce withdrew the motion, and a vote was not taken. 
 
Member Castillon, seconded by Member Ho, moved that the 4BA map be adjusted to 
include the Dogpatch neighborhood and the southern waterfront south to Islais Creek in 
District 6.  Prior to the roll call on the motion, Member Castillon withdrew the motion, 
and a vote was not taken. 
 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 7, 2022 
 
 

 Page 9 

Member Pierce, seconded by Member Ho, moved to adopt the changes to the 4BA 
map proposed by Member Chasel Lee on Page 8 above, and send the map as 
adjusted to the Task Force for further consideration on April 8, 2022. Member 
Hernández Gil offered a friendly amendment to this motion to add the Western 
Addition and Panhandle neighborhoods to District 5. The motion failed by the 
following vote: 
 
Ayes: 4 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Reiner 
 
Noes: 5 -  Castillon, Townsend, Ho, Cooper, Chasel Lee 

 
 

Member Castillon, seconded by Vice Chair Reiner, moved to adopt the changes to 
the 4BA map proposed by Member Chasel Lee above, and send the map as adjusted 
to the Task Force for further consideration on April 8, 2022. The motion carried by 
the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 8 -  Jeremy Lee, Pierce, Castillon, Townsend Ho, Cooper,  

Chasel Lee, Reiner 
 
Noes: 1 -  Hernández Gil 
 
Jaime Clark, Redistricting Consultant (Q2 Data and Research); offered that she would 
save the changes made to the 4BA map and that the result would be titled the 5A map. 
The 5A map appears on the following page of these minutes. 



San Francisco Redistricting Task Force
Board of Supervisors Redistricting

Map 5 A; April 7, 2022

District label shows district name, % deviation, total deviation.
This is a preliminary version of San Francisco’s Board of Supervisors districts and is not the final map of the Redistricting Task Force. This is a preliminary version, not a final draft.



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 7, 2022 
 
 

 Page 11 

Member Cooper, seconded by Member Pierce, moved that the 4DA map be adjusted 
to establish a western boundary of District 3 along Van Ness Avenue, Union Street, 
Jones Street, Columbus Avenue, and Leavenworth Street to the bay waterfront, 
thereby adding portions of the Russian Hill neighborhood to District 2.  The motion 
carried by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 5 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Cooper, Chasel Lee 
 
Noes: 4 -  Castillon, Townsend, Ho, Reiner 

 
Jaime Clark, Redistricting Consultant (Q2 Data and Research); offered that she would 
save the changes made to the 4DA map and that the result would be titled the 5B map. 
The 5B map appears on the following page of these minutes. 



San Francisco Redistricting Task Force
Board of Supervisors Redistricting

Map 5 B; April 7, 2022

District label shows district name, % deviation, total deviation.
This is a preliminary version of San Francisco’s Board of Supervisors districts and is not the final map of the Redistricting Task Force. This is a preliminary version, not a final draft.



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 7, 2022 
 
 

 Page 13 

 
 

3. General Public Comment 
 
Speakers: Jaime Deloria; shared concerns about the tone and intensity of public 
comment to the Task Force and offered thanks to the Task Force and the staff for their 
work. Curtis Bradford; shred concerns that the Task Force is not responding to the 
public from disadvantaged communities of the city. William Walker; shared observations 
about the map he has prepared for the Task Force’s consideration and encouraged the 
Task Force to continue line drawing. David Elliott Lewis; shared various concerns about 
transparency in the redistricting process and concerns that the Task Force is not 
responding to the public input. Speaker; shared various concerns about the Brown Act 
and the addition encouraged the Task Force to add an imperative agenda item in 
reaction the actions of the Elections Commission. Steven Depant-Kelani Currier; shared 
various concerns with the Task Force and thanked the Task Force for retaining the 
District 11 boundaries in the rough shape requested by the community. Theresa 
Flandrich; requested that the Task Force consider the boundaries and definitions of 
North Beach and Russian Hill. Elanor Cox; shared various observations about the 
language diversity of the city, and requested that the Task Force include the Inner Sunset 
neighborhood in District 4 rather than District 7. J. R. Eppler; offered thanks for the 
work of the Task Force and shared an observation that the Dogpatch Green Benefit 
District community of interest layer isn’t displaying on the map viewer. Gloria Berry; 
shared concerns about the accessibility of the redistricting map drawing tools and 
requested that the Task Force include the Chase Center in District 10. Erick Arguello 
(Calle 24 Latino Cultural District); requested that the Task Force set a western boundary 
for District 9 at Guerrero Street. Richard Cardillo (Russian Hill Neighbors); requested 
that the Task Force include the Russian Hill neighborhood in District 3. Speaker; shared 
various concerns with the Task Force. Majeid Crawford; shared concerns about the 
impacts of retaining the neighborhoods of eastern SOMA together in one supervisorial 
district. Speaker; requested that the Task Force consider future growth of the district 
populations throughout the city when finalizing the new maps. Leilani; recommended that 
the District 3 boundaries be moved westward. DeAnthony Jones; shared various 
concerns about the Voting Rights Act and the redevelopment process throughout the city. 
Kevin Ortiz; requested that the Task Force set a western boundary for District 9 at 
Guerrero Street and requested that the Task Force not divide communities of interest as 
defined by the communities. Francisco Herrera; requested that the Task Force set a 
western boundary for District 9 at Guerrero Street and endorsed the Community Unity 
map submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition. Larissa Pedroncelli (United to Save the 
Mission); requested that the Task Force set a western boundary for District 9 at 
Guerrero Street and requested that the Task Force recognize the Latinx cultural roots of 
the Mission District. Alyssa Jones-Garner; requested that the Task Force consider the 
priorities of the established communities of the city during the redistricting process. 

 
At the conclusion of the discussion, Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 7, 2022 
 
 

 Page 14 

 
4. Adjournment 
 

There being no further business, the Redistricting Task Force adjourned at the hour 
of 12:12 a.m., Friday, April 8, 2022. 
 
N.B. The Minutes of this meeting set forth all actions taken by the Redistricting Task 
Force on the matters stated, but not necessarily in the chronological sequence in which 
the matters were taken up. 



 
REDISTRICTING TASK FORCE 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 
MINUTES 

 
 

City Hall, Room 408 
(remote access provided) 

(remote public comment provided via teleconference) 
www.sfgovtv.org  

 
April 8, 2022 – 3:00 PM 

 
Special Meeting 

 
Members: Jeremy Lee, Jose Maria (Chema) Hernández Gil, J. Michelle Pierce, Matthew 

Castillon, Arnold Townsend, Lily Ho, Raynell Cooper, Chasel Lee, Ditka Reiner 
 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
The Redistricting Task Force met in special session, in-person with remote access and 
public comment via telephone and videoconference, on Friday, April 8, 2022. Chair 
Reverend Arnold Townsend called the meeting to order at 3:47 p.m. 
 
On the call of the roll, Chair Townsend, Member Jeremy Lee, Member Hernández Gil, 
Member Pierce, Member Castillon, Member Ho, Member Cooper, Member Chasel Lee, 
and Member Reiner were noted present.   
 
A quorum was present. 

 
At the request of Chair Townsend, Vice Chair Reiner assumed the Chair pro tem at 3:48 p.m. 
 
Chair Townsend was noted not present at 3:48 p.m. 
 
Chair Townsend was noted present at 5:15 p.m. 
 
2. Mapping 

 
Andrew Shen, Deputy City Attorney (Office of the City Attorney); provided a brief 
summary of the deadlines impacting the drafting and approval of the Final Draft map. 
Jaime Clark, Redistricting Consultant (Q2 Data and Research); conducted the live line 
drawing and answered questions raised throughout the discussion. 
 
Speakers: Cheryl Thornton; endorsed the 4D map and shared concerns regarding 
transparency in the redistricting process. 

http://www.sfgovtv.org/


Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 8, 2022 
 
 

 Page 2 

Speaker; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 10 boundaries and shared 
concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Minister Lavonne; shared various concern with the Task Force. 
Brenda Barros; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 10 boundaries. 
Speaker; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Yvonne Hines; requested that the Task Force include the Potrero Hill, Sunnydale, and 
Bayview neighborhoods and retain them wholly within one supervisorial district. 
Erick Arguello; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district and establish a western boundary 
for District 9 at Guerrero Street. 
Mr. Mendoza (Calle 24 Latino Cultural District); requested that the Task Force establish 
a western boundary for District 9 at Guerrero Street and retain the American Indian 
Cultural District wholly within one supervisorial district. 
Speaker; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Michael Smith; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin, Central SOMA, and 
Treasure Island neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district with a western 
boundary at Polk Street, and shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting 
process. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Potrero Hill neighborhood wholly 
within District 10. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Potrero Hill neighborhood wholly 
within District 10. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Pat Smith; requested that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the existing 
District 5 together within the new District 5 map and shared concerns regarding 
transparency in the redistricting process. 
Geoffrea Morris (Invest Black Coalition); endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the 
District 10 boundaries. 
Kevin Ortiz; endorsed the 4D and 5B maps as pertains to the Latinx community. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Ranon Ross; endorsed the 4D map and shared concerns regarding transparency in the 
redistricting process. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Potrero Hill, Dogpatch, and Bayview 
neighborhoods wholly within District 10. 
William Walker; shared observations about the map he has prepared for the Task 
Force’s consideration and highlighted the Districts 5, 6, 10, and 11 communities of 
concern featured in his map. 
Didi Hewitt; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Speaker (Better Housing Policies); requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff 
neighborhood in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Christine Olivas; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Raquel Redondiez (SOMA Pilipinas); requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin 
and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 8, 2022 
 
 

 Page 3 

David Woo (SOMA Pilipinas); requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and 
Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district and shared various 
concerns about the emerging communities of eastern SOMA. 
Curtis Bradford, Co-Chair (Tenderloin Peoples Congress); endorsed the 5B map, 
requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods 
together in District 6, and shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting 
process. 
Rosaria Cervantes; endorsed the 4D and 5B maps, and .requested that the Task Force 
include the Oceanview, Merced Heights, and Ingleside (OMI) neighborhoods in 
District 11. 
Francisco Herrera; endorsed the 5B map with adjustments to the western boundary of 
District 9 requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood and Lake 
Street corridor in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Jaime Deloria; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district and shared various concerns about 
the emerging communities of eastern SOMA. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the Visitacion Valley and Portola 
neighborhoods and retain them wholly within on supervisorial district. 
Alice Mosley; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Brian Quan; requested that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting 
power among supervisorial districts and requested that the Task Force include the 
Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, and Jordan Park neighborhoods in District 1 rather than 
District 2. 
Sam; requested that the Task Force recognize the Visitacion Valley and Portola 
neighborhoods as a community of interest and retain them wholly within District 10. 
Steve Leeds; endorsed the 4D and 5B maps and offered opposition to the 4B map, shared 
concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process, requested that the Task 
Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in District 2 rather than District 1, requested 
that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the existing District 5 together 
within the new District 5 map. 
Jim Warshell; endorsed the 5B map with adjustments. 
Walter Caplan; requested that the Task Force retain the Lakeshore Acres and Merced 
Manor neighborhoods and retain them within District 7 rather than District 4, and 
requested that the Task Force consider future population growth during the redistricting 
process. 
Larry Griffin (North of Panhandle Neighborhood Association); requested that the Task 
Force recognize the North of Panhandle neighborhood and retain it along with the 
Western Addition in District 5. 
Cheryl Jackson; requested that the Task Force recognize the voices of marginalized and 
disadvantaged communities throughout the city during the redistricting process. 
Bobak Esfandiari; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood and 
areas north of Lake Street in District 1 rather than District 2, requested that the Task 
Force draw district lines to equalize the voting power among supervisorial districts, and 
requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods 
together in one supervisorial district. 
John Avalos; endorsed the 4D map, requested that the Task Force recognize the voices of 
marginalized and disadvantaged communities throughout the city during the redistricting 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 8, 2022 
 
 

 Page 4 

process, and shared concerns about gentrification pressures in the emerging 
neighborhoods of the city. 
Chuck Obermeyer (Mid-Market Neighbors); requested that the Task Force recognize that 
Market Street is the backbone of the Mid-Market neighborhood and not a dividing line. 
Greg Foote; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Madeline Trembley; endorsed the District 3 Neighborhoods United Plan map. 
Sarah Farley; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map 
Coalition and the 5B map as pertains to the North of Panhandle neighborhood. 
Francisco da Costa; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting 
process. 
Renee Curran; requested that the Task Force retain the Inner Sunset within District 5, or 
in District 4 rather than District 7, with a boundary at Funston Avenue. 
Dr. Emily Murase, Executive Director (Japantown Task Force); requested that the Task 
Force recognize the Japantown community and retain it wholly within District 5. 
Jean Barrish; requested that the Task Force expand the District 1 boundaries to the east 
toward the Anza Vista neighborhood and requested that the Task Force include the 
Seacliff neighborhood in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Dave Howard; requested that the Task Force recognize that Market Street is the 
backbone of the Mid-Market neighborhood and not a dividing line, and requested that the 
Tenderloin and western SOMA neighborhoods be retained wholly within one 
supervisorial district, with a boundary at Van Ness Avenue. 
Glynis Nakahara (Japantown Task Force; requested that the Task Force recognize the 
Japantown community and retain it wholly within District 5. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force shared various concerns about the Portola 
neighborhood. 
Betty Louie (Chinatown Merchants Association); endorsed the 5A map as pertains to the 
District 3 boundaries and the Chinatown neighborhoods. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the existing 
District 5 together within the new District 5 map and shared concerns regarding 
transparency in the redistricting process. 
Matthew; requested that the Task Force retain the Arab, Queer, Latin, Chinese, and 
other communities of the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods and retain the 
together in one supervisorial district. 
Diana Drue; endorsed the 5A map as pertains to the District 6 boundaries and the 
neighborhoods of eastern SOMA. 
Eileen Boken (Sunset Parkside Education and Action Committee SPEAK); shared various 
concerns about the District 4 boundaries. 
Angela Jenkins; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Treasure Island 
neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Barbara Dwyer; endorsed the 5A map as pertains to the communities around Dolores 
Park. 
Hugo Kobayashi; endorsed the 5B map and requested that the Task Force include the 
Inner Sunset neighborhood within District 5, or if that is not possible the Inner Sunset 
should be included in District 4 rather than District 7. 
David Elliott Lewis; endorsed the 5B map and offered opposition to the 5A map as 
pertains to the SOMA and Tenderloin neighborhoods, endorsed the Community Unity 
map submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition, and requested that the Task Force retain 
the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together District 6. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 8, 2022 
 
 

 Page 5 

Hope Williams; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin, Central SOMA, and 
Treasure Island neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Claire Lau; (Chinese Progressive Association) endorsed the Community Unity map 
submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition and the 5B map. 
Bob Harrer; endorsed the 5A map and requested that the Task Force draw district lines 
to equalize the voting power among supervisorial districts. 
Rishelle; requested that the Task Force recognize the voices of residents of Single Room 
Occupancy (SRO) hotels and retain them wholly within one supervisorial district, 
requested that the Task Force establish a western boundary for District 6 at Guerrero 
Street. 
Matt Parkes; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Marie Hurabiell; endorsed the 5A map as pertains to the District 3 neighborhoods and 
offered opposition to the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map 
Coalition. 
Chelsea Waite; endorsed the 5A map as pertains to the Districts 3, 6, and 4 boundaries, 
and requested that the Task Force work to include the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods in one supervisorial district. 
Speaker; endorsed the 5A map as pertains to the geographical compactness of the district 
boundaries, and the neighborhoods of eastern SOMA, and offered opposition to the 
Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition. 
Colleen Rebecca; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map 
Coalition, requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6. 
J. R. Eppler; requested that the Task Force include the Showplace Square, Potrero Hill, 
and Dogpatch neighborhoods together in District 10. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6 rather than District 5, and suggested that the Inner 
Sunset be included in District 5 with a boundary at Funston Avenue. 
Martha Conti; endorsed the 5A map and requested that the Task Force include the 
Seacliff neighborhood in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Alec Bash (Gateway Tenants Association); endorsed the District 3 Neighborhoods United 
Plan map and requested that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting 
power among supervisorial districts. 
Joseph Smooke (Richmond District Rising); suggested that the District 1 boundaries 
should expand toward the east toward the Anza Vista neighborhood, and requested that 
the Task Force include the Seacliff and Presidio Heights neighborhoods in District 2 
rather than District 1, with the Lone Mountain neighborhood in District 1. 
Cynthia (Chinese Progressive Association); endorsed the 5B map as pertains to the 
District 3 boundaries, and requested that the Task Force include the Russian Hill 
neighborhood in District 2 rather than District 3. 
Sophia Andary; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Presidio Terrace 
neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1, and suggested that the Lone Mountain 
neighborhood be included in District 1. 
Lori Yamauchi (Japantown Task Force); requested that the Task Force recognize the 
Japantown community and retain it wholly within District 5 along with the Western 
Addition with a northern boundary of California Street. 
Denise; offered opposition to the 5A map as pertains to the District 5 boundaries, and 
endorsed the 5B map. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 8, 2022 
 
 

 Page 6 

Susan Vaughn; endorsed the 5B map and requested that the Task Force include the 
Seacliff and Presidio Terrace neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Speaker; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition 
and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Jill Downey (Cole Valley Improvement Association); requested that the Task Force. 
Speaker; endorsed the 5A map requested that the Task Force draw district lines to 
equalize the voting power among supervisorial districts, and offered opposition to the 5B 
map. 
Theresa Flandrich; requested that the Task Force return to the 2000 boundaries as 
pertain to the Russian Hill neighborhood. 
Sally Stephens; requested that the Task Force recognize the Golden Gate Heights 
neighborhood and include it wholly within District 7 rather than District 4. 
Kathleen Courtney; requested that the Task Force not divide the Russian Hill and 
Chinatown neighborhoods between multiple supervisorial districts. 
Bob Goldfarb (Leather and LGBTQ Cultural District); partially endorsed the 5B map as 
pertains to the Leather and LGBTQ Cultural District, and requested that the Task Force 
retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6, especially 
as pertains to the SOMA Pilipinas Cultural district and the Compton’s Transgender 
Cultural District. 
Jessica; requested that the Task Force include Treasure Island in District 3. 
Ross Minot; requested that the Task Force recognize the Showplace Square, Dogpatch, 
and Potrero Hill neighborhoods and retain them wholly within District 10. 
Peter Van Dyke; endorsed the 5B map and shared concerns regarding transparency in 
the redistricting process. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Catherine; requested that the Task Force recognize the Showplace Square, Dogpatch, 
and Potrero Hill neighborhoods and retain them wholly within District 10. 
Christine Zaback; requested that the Task Force include the Lakeshore Acres and 
Merced Manor neighborhoods in District 7 rather than District 4. 
David Hooper; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, and 
West Clay Park neighborhoods in District 1 rather than District 2, the Russian Hill 
neighborhood in District 2. 
Scott Andreas; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Veronica Shepherd; requested that the Task Force recognize the Bayview community and 
retain it wholly within one supervisorial district. 
Richard Cardillo; offered opposition to the 5B map. 
Luke; supported the 5A map and offered opposition to the Community Unity map 
submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition, and requested that the Task Force draw 
district lines to equalize the voting power among supervisorial districts. 
Sandra Lee Fewer; endorsed the 5B map with modifications to include the Seacliff and 
Presidio Terrace neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Donovan Lacey; offered opposition to the 5A map as pertains to the District 10 
boundaries and requested that the Task Force recognize the Showplace Square, 
Dogpatch, and Potrero Hill neighborhoods and retain them wholly within District 10. 
Speaker; endorsed the 5A map as pertains to the District 8 boundaries. 
Steven Torres (Castro LGBTQ Cultural District); requested that the Task Force include 
the Mission Dolores and Castro LGBTQ Cultural District wholly within District 8. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 8, 2022 
 
 

 Page 7 

Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district and shared concerns regarding 
transparency in the redistricting process. 
Neil; endorsed the 5A map as pertain to the boundary between Districts 8 and 9. 
Luis Lamora; endorsed the 5A map. 
Jupiter Peraza (Transgender Cultural District); requested that the Task Force recognize 
and retain the Transgender Cultural District wholly within one supervisorial district. 
DeAnthony Jones; requested that the Task Force recognize and retain the Dogpatch and 
Potrero Hill neighborhoods wholly within District 10, and requested that the Task Force 
recognize the Japantown community and retain it wholly within District 5. 
Michael Nulty; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Angelica Cabande (SOMCAN); endorsed the 5B map and requested that the Task Force 
retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6, and 
retain the Bayview and Potrero Hill neighborhoods wholly within District 10. 
Chris Chang; endorsed the 5A map especially as pertains to the neighborhoods of 
eastern SOMA. 
Paul Wells; offered opposition to the 5A map and requested that the Task Force make 
minimal changes to the existing districts of the city. 
Renee Jordan; requested that the Task Force include General Hospital in District 10. 
Tim; endorsed the 5B map. 
Anna Lei; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition, 
requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods 
together in one supervisorial district. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the disparate racial impacts of the 
redistricting laws and shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting 
process. 
Gus; offered opposition to the 5A map as pertains to the Districts 1 and 2 neighborhoods, 
and requested that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the existing 
District 5 together within the new District 5 map. 
Martin Almaraz, President (North of Panhandle Neighborhood Association); requested 
that the Task Force retain the North of Panhandle neighborhood wholly within District 5 
rather than District 2. 
Caroline Constantino; requested that the Task Force retain the North of Panhandle 
neighborhood wholly within District 5 rather than District 2 and requested that the Task 
Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6, 
and requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in District 2 rather 
than District 1. 
Eva Lee; endorsed the 5A map as pertains to the District 3 boundaries and the Russian 
Hill neighborhood. 
John DeCastro; endorsed the 5B map and requested that the Task Force recognize the 
Showplace Square, Dogpatch, and Potrero Hill neighborhoods and retain them wholly 
within one supervisorial district. 
Julie Pitta; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Alice; requested that the Task Force recognize the Dogpatch and Potrero Hill 
neighborhoods and retain them wholly within one supervisorial district. 
Susan; endorsed the 5B map and requested that the Task Force retain the central 
neighborhoods of the existing District 5 together within the new District 5 map. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 8, 2022 
 
 

 Page 8 

Philippe Sonne; endorsed 5A map and the District 3 Neighborhoods United Plan map, 
and offered opposition to the 5B map as pertains to the District 3 boundaries. 
Oliver Saria; endorsed the 5B map. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the existing 
District 5, including the Panhandle, together within the new District 5 map. 
Antonio; thanked the Task Force for their service. 
Peter Warfield; offered opposition to the 5A and 5B maps as pertain to the southern 
boundaries of District 5. 
William Owen; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Edward Wright, President (Harvey Milk LGBTQ Democratic Club); requested that the 
Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in 
District 6, including the Leather LGBTQ and Transgender Cultural Districts. 

 
Chair Townsend recessed the meeting beginning at 8:13 p.m., and reconvened the 
meeting at 9:16 p.m. 
 
Member Hernández Gil proposed an informal, non-binding straw poll of the Task 
Force to determine which map—5A or 5B—should be the subject of the live line 
drawing exercise. By a show of hands, the Task Force selected the 5A map, with 
members Reiner, Townsend, Castillon, Ho, Cooper, and Chasel Lee raising their 
hands. 
 
The Task Force requested Q2 Data and Research to make the following adjustments 
to the 5A map, in order: 
 

• Add the area bounded by Fulton Street, Divisadero Street, Oak 
Street, and Masonic Avenue to District 5; 

• Add the area bounded by Geary Boulevard, Gough Street, Post 
Street, and Laguna Street to District 2; 

• Add the area bounded by Sutter Street, Octavia Boulevard, Bush 
Street, and Gough Street to District 2; 

• Add the Farallon Islands to District 4; 
• Add the Aquatic Park and Fort Mason north of Bay Street to 

District 2; 
• Add the area bounded by Market Street, Grove Street, and Van Ness 

Avenue to District 6; 
• Add the southern Dogpatch neighborhood to District 10, with a 

boundary at 22nd Street; 
• Add the Cole Valley neighborhood and Kezar Stadium within Golden 

Gate Park to District 8, with a boundary at Waller Street; 
• Add the Bernal Heights neighborhood wholly to District 9, using the 

boundaries in the city’s definition of the neighborhood; 
• Add Mint Hill north of Duboce Street and west of Valencia Street to 

District 8; 
• Add part of Golden Gate Park north to JFK Drive to District 7; 
• Add the Lakeside Presbyterian Church to District 4; 
• Add areas in northeast Parnassus Heights to District 8; 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 8, 2022 
 
 

 Page 9 

• Add areas bounded by 24th Street, Valencia Street, and Guerrero 
Street to District 9; 

• Add Mission Dolores to District 8—the area bounded by Duboce 
Street, Valencia Street, Clinton Park, and Guerrero Street; 

• Add the area bounded by Laguna Street, Waller Street, Octavia 
Boulevard, and Haight Street to District 5; 

• Add the area bounded by San Jose Avenue and Tiffany Avenue south 
of Duncan Street to District 8; 

• Add the area bounded by 11th Street, Harrison Street, Alameda 
Street, Treat Avenue, and Division Street to District 6; 

• Add a small wedge of land west of Interstate 280 and north of 
Mariposa Street to District 10; and 

• Add the Dogpatch neighborhood to District 6, with boundaries on 
Interstate 280, Iowa Street, 25th Street, Indiana Street, Cesar Chavez, 
Illinois Street, and 25th Street to the water. 

 
Jaime Clark, Redistricting Consultant (Q2 Data and Research); offered that she would 
save the changes made to the 5A map and that the result would be titled Map 6. Map 6 
appears on the following page of these minutes. 



San Francisco Redistricting Task Force
Board of Supervisors Redistricting

Map 6;  April 8, 2022

District label shows district name, % deviation, total deviation.
This is a preliminary version of San Francisco’s Board of Supervisors districts and is not the final map of the Redistricting Task Force. This is a preliminary version, not a final draft.



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 8, 2022 
 
 

 Page 11 

 
3. Approval of Minutes from the Special Meeting of April 2, 2022 

 
Chair Townsend inquired whether any Member had any corrections to the Minutes of the 
April 2, 2022, special Meeting of the Redistricting Task Force. There were no changes 
offered. 
 
Speakers:  Peter Warfield shared concerns about the form of the April 2, 2022 minutes 
and the minutes for the meeting of March 25, 2022, approved by the Task Force on 
April 4, 2022. 
 
Member Chasel Lee, seconded by Member Cooper, moved that the April 2, 2022, 
meeting minutes be APPROVED.  The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 9 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Castillon, Townsend Ho, Cooper,  

Chasel Lee, Reiner 
 

4. General Public Comment 
 
Speakers: Curtis Bradford, Co-Chair (Tenderloin Peoples Congress); requested that the 
Task Force recognize the Transgender Cultural District as a part of the Tenderloin 
neighborhood, and highlighted the density of the historical landmarks within the 
Tenderloin neighborhood. Jaime Deloria; thanked the Task Force and staff for their 
service. Peter Warfield; shared concerns about the accessibility of documents and the 
San Francisco Digital Equity Strategic Plan. Jason Lee; requested that the Task Force 
include the Russian Hill neighborhood in District 2, Glen Park in District 8, Cole Valley 
within District 5, the Inner Sunset west of 14th Avenue in District 4, and retain the 
Tenderloin neighborhood within District 6. Bob Goldfarb, Executive Director (Leather 
LGBTQ Cultural District); requested that the Task Force include the Transgender 
Cultural District in District 6. Majeid Crawford; requested that the Task Force include 
the Tenderloin and SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6 and suggested that the 
Task Force consider taking a bit out of the emerging neighborhoods of eastern SOMA. 
J.R. Eppler; requested that the Task Force retain the Potrero Hill, Dogpatch, and 
Showplace Square neighborhoods together in District 10. William Walker; requested that 
the Task Force consider the map he submitted to the Task Force on April 8, 2022 and 
suggested that the Black communities of interest live in Districts 5, 6 10, and 11. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force include a tally for the comments in support of the 
various maps. David Pilpel; supported the changes to the 5A map and suggested that 
there is still time to make improvements to the map. Jupiter Peraza (Transgender 
Cultural District); requested that the Task Force keep both the Transgender Cultural 
District and the Tenderloin neighborhood whole. Michael Nulty; shared various 
concerns with the Task Force in regard to representative government. Josephine; 
requested that the Task Force include the Inner Sunset neighborhood west of 14th 
Avenue in District 4, and requested that the Task Force unite the Portola and Visitacion 
Valley neighborhoods in District 10. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 
 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 8, 2022 
 
 

 Page 12 

5. Adjournment 
 

There being no further business, the Redistricting Task Force adjourned at the hour 
of 11:26 p.m. 
 
N.B. The Minutes of this meeting set forth all actions taken by the Redistricting Task 
Force on the matters stated, but not necessarily in the chronological sequence in which 
the matters were taken up. 



 
REDISTRICTING TASK FORCE 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 
MINUTES 

 
 

City Hall, Room 400 
(remote access provided) 

(remote public comment provided via teleconference) 
www.sfgovtv.org  

 
April 9, 2022 – 10:00 AM 

 
Special Meeting 

 
Members: Jeremy Lee, Jose Maria (Chema) Hernández Gil, J. Michelle Pierce, Matthew 

Castillon, Arnold Townsend, Lily Ho, Raynell Cooper, Chasel Lee, Ditka Reiner 
 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
The Redistricting Task Force met in special session, in-person with remote access and 
public comment via telephone and videoconference, on Saturday, April 9, 2022. Chair 
Reverend Arnold Townsend called the meeting to order at 10:23 a.m. 
 
On the call of the roll, Chair Townsend, Member Jeremy Lee, Member Hernández Gil, 
Member Pierce, Member Castillon, Member Ho, Member Cooper, Member Chasel Lee, 
and Member Reiner were noted present. 
 
A quorum was present. 

 
Chair Townsend declared that he would set the public comment time for the meeting to one 
minute per speaker. 
 
Member Hernández Gil offered a motion to appeal the decision of the Chair to limit public 
comment to one minute per speaker. The motion was seconded by member Pierce. Before the roll 
was called on the motion, Member Hernández Gil withdrew the motion. 
 
Chair Townsend declared that he would set the public comment time for the meeting at 2 minutes 
per speaker. 
 
2. Mapping 
 

Gus Guibert, Deputy City Attorney (Office of the City Attorney); answered questions 
raised throughout the discussion.  Jaime Clark, Redistricting Consultant (Q2 Data and 
Research); conducted the live line drawing and answered questions raised throughout 
the discussion. 

http://www.sfgovtv.org/


Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 9, 2022 
 
 

 Page 2 

Member Jeremy Lee, seconded by Member Pierce moved that the 5B map be adopted. Before the 
roll was called on the motion, Members Jeremy Lee and Pierce withdrew their motions. 
 

The Task Force requested Q2 Data and Research to make the following adjustments 
to Map 6, in order: 
 

• Add areas bounded by Turk Street, O’Farrell Street, and Broderick Street to 
District 5; 

• Add the ACT Theatre to District 3, with boundaries at Taylor Street, Geary 
Boulevard, and Mason Street; 

• Add the northern corner of Mint Hill to District 8;  
• Add the area bounded by Masonic Avenue, Frederick Street, and Buena 

Vista Avenue West to District 8; and 
• Add the Parnassus Heights neighborhood to District 7, with an eastern 

boundary at Woodland Avenue. 
 
Chair Townsend recessed the meeting beginning at 1:14 p.m., and reconvened the meeting 
at 2:39 p.m. 

 
Speakers: Amos Brown; requested that the Task Force consider the Black voices of San 
Francisco throughout the redistricting process and requested that the Task Force retain 
the Fillmore and Bayview neighborhoods intact. 
Yu Lan; requested that the Task Force recognize and respect the voices of the low-
income working families who reside in the Visitacion Valley, Bayview, and Portola 
neighborhoods and include them wholly within District 10, and requested that the Task 
Force retain the Chinatown neighborhood wholly within District 3. 
Yoyo; requested that the Task Force recognize and respect the voices of the low-income 
working families who reside in the Visitacion Valley, Bayview, and Portola 
neighborhoods and include them wholly within District 10, and requested that the Task 
Force retain the Chinatown neighborhood wholly within District 3. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize and respect the voices of the low-
income working families who reside in the Visitacion Valley, Bayview, and Portola 
neighborhoods and include them wholly within District 10. 
Herman Yu; requested that the Task Force recognize and respect the voices of the low-
income working families who reside in the Visitacion Valley, Bayview, and Portola 
neighborhoods and include them wholly within District 10, and requested that the Task 
Force retain the Chinatown neighborhood wholly within District 3. 
Sarah Chan; requested that the Task Force recognize and respect the voices of the low-
income working families who reside in the Visitacion Valley, Bayview, and Portola 
neighborhoods and include them wholly within District 10. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force consider fair representation and access to 
resources for the low-income working families who reside in the Visitacion Valley, 
Bayview, and Potrero Hill neighborhoods and include them wholly within District 10. 
Ying; requested that the Task Force consider fair representation and access to resources 
for the low-income working families who reside in the Visitacion Valley, Bayview, and 
Potrero Hill neighborhoods and include them wholly within District 10. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 9, 2022 
 
 

 Page 3 

Speaker; requested that the Task Force consider fair representation and access to 
resources for the low-income working families who reside in the Visitacion Valley, 
Bayview, and Potrero Hill neighborhoods and include them wholly within District 10. 
Cali; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6 and requested that the Task Force consider fair 
representation and access to resources for the low-income working families who reside in 
the Visitacion Valley, Bayview, and Portola neighborhoods and include them wholly 
within District 10. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force consider fair representation and access to 
resources for the low-income working families who reside in the Visitacion Valley, 
Bayview, and Potrero Hill neighborhoods and include them wholly within District 10. 
Yolanda Williams; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Angela Jenkins; requested that the Task Force consider the voting rights of African 
American residents of the city throughout the redistricting process, requested that the 
Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Treasure Island neighborhoods together in one 
supervisorial district. 
Walter Caplan; requested that the Task Force recognize the boundaries of the Lakeshore 
Acres and Merced Manor neighborhoods, and retain them wholly within District 7, and 
requested that portions of Parnassus Heights be included in District 8. 
Betty Louie (Chinatown Merchants Association); endorsed the District 3 Neighborhoods 
United Plan map as pertains to the District 3 boundaries and the tourism industry in the 
city, and requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in District 1 
rather than District 2. 
Denis Mosgofian; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process 
and requested that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the existing 
District 5 together within the new District 5 map. 
Bill Chionsini; requested that the Task Force retain the Lakeshore Acres neighborhood 
wholly within District 7, rather than District 4. 
Doug Comstock; requested that the Task Force recognize the west NOPA neighborhood 
and retain the neighborhood wholly within District 5 rather than District 1. 
Sophia Catherine Rothschild (Better Housing Policy); requested that the Task Force 
recognize the Portola and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods and retain them together 
wholly within District 10. 
Lei Wa Wu; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Vincent; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6, suggested that the Inner Sunset be included in 
District 4 rather than District 7, and suggested that Merced Manor be included in 
District 7 rather than District 5. 
Nicole; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6, suggested that the Inner Sunset be included in 
District 4 rather than District 7, and suggested that Merced Manor be included in 
District 7 rather than District 5. 
Jessica Chang; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6, suggested that the Inner Sunset be included in 
District 4 rather than District 7 with a boundary at Funston Avenue, and suggested that 
Merced Manor be included in District 7 rather than District 5. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 9, 2022 
 
 

 Page 4 

Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6, requested that the Task Force consider fair 
representation and access to resources for the low-income working families who reside in 
the Visitacion Valley, Bayview, and Potrero Hill neighborhoods and include them wholly 
within District 10, suggested that the Inner Sunset be included in District 4 rather than 
District 7 with a boundary at Funston Avenue, and suggested that Merced Manor be 
included in District 7 rather than District 5. 
Patricia (Better Housing Policy); requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola, 
Visitacion Valley, and Bayview neighborhoods and include them wholly within 
District 10. 
Amy; requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola, Visitacion Valley, and Hunter-
Point neighborhoods and include them wholly within District 10. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola, Visitacion Valley, and 
Bayview neighborhoods and include them wholly within District 10. 
Speaker (Better Housing Policy); requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola, 
Visitacion Valley, and Bayview neighborhoods and include them wholly within 
District 10. 
Jessica (Better Housing Policy); requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola, 
Visitacion Valley, and Hunter-Point neighborhoods and include them wholly within 
District 10. 
Sam (Better Housing Policy); requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola and 
Visitacion Valley neighborhoods and the San Bruno Avenue merchant corridor and 
include them wholly within District 10. 
Yu Zhaowu; requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods and the San Bruno Avenue corridor and include them wholly within 
District 10. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods and the San Bruno Avenue corridor and include them wholly within 
District 10. 
Qi Dai; requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods and the San Bruno Avenue corridor and include them wholly within 
District 10. 
Na Zou; requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods and the San Bruno Avenue corridor and include them wholly within 
District 10. 
Sylvia; requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods and the San Bruno Avenue corridor as a community of interest and 
include them wholly within District 10. 
Yan (Better Housing Policy); requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola and 
Visitacion Valley neighborhoods and include them wholly within District 10. 
Speaker (Better Housing Policy); requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola, 
Visitacion Valley, and Bayview neighborhoods and include them wholly within 
District 10. 
Mary Watkins; requested that the Task Force recognize the Western Addition 
neighborhood and retain it wholly within District 5. 
Jason Lee; requested that the Task Force include the Russian Hill neighborhood wholly 
within District 2. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 9, 2022 
 
 

 Page 5 

Bernita; requested that the Task Force consider the history of redevelopment within the 
city and the voting rights of African Americans throughout the redistricting process. 
Susie; requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola and Visitacion Valley and 
include them wholly within District 10. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola and Visitacion Valley and 
include them wholly within District 10. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola and Visitacion Valley and 
include them wholly within District 10. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the impact of the history of urban 
renewal on the Western Addition and the Fillmore neighborhoods, and requested that the 
Task Force retain the communities wholly within District 5. 
Carol Tatum; requested that the Task Force recognize the Potrero Hill, Bayview, and 
Visitacion Valley neighborhoods and include them wholly within District 10. 
Lavonne King; requested that the Task Force recognize the Potrero Hill, Bayview, and 
Visitacion Valley neighborhoods and include them wholly within District 10. 
Brenda Barros; requested that the Task Force recognize the racism throughout the 
communities of the city. 
Renee Curran; requested that the Task Force move the boundaries of District 4 east into 
the Inner Sunset, and suggested that the Task Force include Merced Manor in District 7 
rather than District 4. 
Lori Liederman; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Veronica Shepherd; requested that the Task Force recognize the Potrero Hill, Bayview, 
and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods and include them wholly within District 10. 
Chelsea Waite; requested that the Task Force Mid-Market Whole, requested that the 
Task Force recognize the Portola, Bayview, and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods and 
include them wholly within District 10, and requested that the Task Force include the 
Seacliff neighborhood in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the communities impacted by 
environmental injustice and consider them throughout the redistricting process, and 
requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods 
together in District 6. 
Alice Moseley; requested that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the 
existing District 5 together within the new District 5 map. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Lakeshore Acres neighborhood in 
District 7, and shared concerns about the future development around the Stonestown 
shopping center. 
Geoffrea Morris; requested that the Task Force recognize the Potrero Hill and Bayview 
neighborhoods and include them wholly within District 10, and suggested that the 
Portola neighborhood not be included in District 10. 
Tab Buckner; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, and 
West Clay Park neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1, requested that the 
Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one 
supervisorial district, and requested that the Task Force include areas south of Sloat 
Boulevard in District 7 rather than District 4. 
Susie Kagami (Japantown Cultural District); requested that the Task Force recognize the 
Japantown and Cathedral Hill neighborhoods. 
Curtis Bradford, Co-Chair (Tenderloin Peoples Congress); requested that the Task 
Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6, 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 9, 2022 
 
 

 Page 6 

and acknowledge the concession which the Tenderloin neighborhood has offered during 
the redistricting process. 
John Avalos; requested that the Task Force recognize the legacy of urban renewal and 
the impacts on the communities of the city and requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Raquel Redondiez (SOMA Pilipinas); shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Cheryl Thornton; requested that the Task Force retain the Potrero Hill neighborhood 
wholly within District 10. 
David Woo; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Tiffany Ng; requested that the Task Force retain the Visitacion Valley, Bayview, and 
Potrero Hill neighborhoods together in District 10, the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods wholly within District 6, and requested that the Russian Hill 
neighborhood be included in District 2. 
Ranon Ross; requested that the Task Force include the Bayview and Potrero Hill 
neighborhoods wholly within District 10, and that the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods be retained wholly within District 6. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Jaime Deloria; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Cheryl Jackson; requested that the Task Force recognize the impacts of redistricting on 
the working-class people of the city and respect their voices. 
Russel Morine; requested that the Task Force retain the Potrero Hill, Sunnydale, 
Visitacion Valley, Little Hollywood, Bayview, Hunters Point, Dogpatch, and Showplace 
Square neighborhoods wholly within District 10. 
Sally Stephens; requested that the Task Force recognize the Golden Gate Heights 
neighborhood and the Irving Street merchant corridor and include them in District 7. 
Kevin Ortiz (San Francisco Latinx Democratic Club); requested that the Task Force set 
the border between Districts 8 and 9 as 22nd Street and Guerrero, up to Division Street, 
requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods 
together in one supervisorial district. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods and the San Bruno Avenue corridor and include them wholly within 
District 10. 
Paulina Feyer; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in 
District 1 rather than District 2. 
Erica Zweig; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the existing 
District 5 together within the new District 5 map. 
Larry Griffin; requested that the Task Force recognize the NOPA area and include it 
wholly within District 5 rather than District 2. 
Jupiter Peraza (Transgender Cultural District); requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6 and retain the 
Transgender Cultural District whole within it. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods and the San Bruno Avenue corridor and include them wholly within 
District 10. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 9, 2022 
 
 

 Page 7 

Dian Drue; requested that the Task Force recognize the Rincon Hill and Mission Bay 
neighborhoods and retain them together within District 6. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods and include them wholly within District 10 and requested that the Task 
Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Grant Ingram; requested that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting 
power among supervisorial districts, and draw lines that are contiguous and compact. 
Tes Welborn; requested that the Task Force not include the Tenderloin neighborhood in 
District 5 and shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Dr. Theresa Palmer; requested that the Task Force not include the Tenderloin 
neighborhood in District 5, requested that the Task Force retain the central 
neighborhoods of the existing District 5 together within the new District 5 map, and 
requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods 
together within District 6. 
Jean Bogiages; requested that the Task Force recognize the Northwest Potrero Hill 
Green Benefit District and retain it together with the Potrero Hill, Dogpatch, and 
Showplace Square neighborhoods in District 10. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the North of Panhandle neighborhood 
and retain it within District 5. 
Anastasia Yovanopoulos; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and 
Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6 rather than District 5 and requested 
that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Bobak Esfandiari; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in 
District 1 rather than District 2. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Kristine Zaback; requested that the Task Force include the Merced Manor and 
Lakeshore Acres neighborhoods in District 7 rather than District 4. 
Emma; requested that the Task Force recognize the Potrero Hill and Dogpatch 
neighborhoods and retain them wholly within District 10. 
Stacy Randecker; requested that the Task Force recognize the Potrero Hill and Dogpatch 
neighborhoods and retain them wholly within District 10. 
Michelle; requested that the Task Force prioritize and maintain the historically 
disadvantages communities of the city requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district, 
Potrero Hill in District 10. 
Paul Aguilar; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Christin Evans; requested that the Task Force prioritize the restoration of the Haight 
neighborhood to District 5. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force include the Portola neighborhood in District 9 
rather than District 10. 
Peter Warfield; requested that the Task Force include Cole Valley in District 5 rather 
than District 8. 
Francisco da Costa; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central 
SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Steven Torres, Co-Chair (Castro LGBTQ Democratic Club); shared various concerns 
with the Task Force. 
Jeff Rigo; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 9, 2022 
 
 

 Page 8 

Linda McKay; requested that the Task Force include the Dogpatch in District 10 rather 
than District 6, and include the Portola neighborhood in District 9 rather in District 10. 
Jim; requested that the Task Force restore the Haight neighborhood to District 5. 
Ryan McGilley; requested that the Task Force recognize the working families of the city 
as communities of interest and retain the Portola neighborhood in District 9. 
Marie Hurabiell; requested that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting 
power among supervisorial districts, and draw lines that are contiguous and compact. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Inner Sunset neighborhood in 
District 7 rather than District 4. 
Race Bannon; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Tim Hickey; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
David Elliott Lewis; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central 
SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Cynthia Gomez; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Zachary; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6, and suggested that the Task Force retain the 
Portola neighborhood in District 10. 
Dr. Saidah Leatutufu-Burch; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and 
Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6, and suggested that the Task Force 
retain the Portola neighborhood in District 10. 
Priya Zabaker; shared concerns about the western boundary of District 9, and suggested 
that the Task Force include both sides of Valencia Street in District 9. 
Eileen Boken (Sunset Parkside Education and Action Committee SPEAK); shared various 
concerns with the Task Force. 
Celine; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Michelle; shared concerns about the western boundary of District 9, and suggested that 
the Task Force include both sides of Valencia Street in District 9. 
Aaron; shared concerns about the western boundary of District 9, and suggested that the 
Task Force include both sides of Valencia Street in District 9. 
Jennifer Yen; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in 
District 1 rather than District 2. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
William Walker; requested that the Task Force retain the Mid-Market neighborhood in 
District 6, include the Portola neighborhood in District 10, and suggested that the 
Merced Manor neighborhood be retained wholly within District 7. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force unite the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods in one supervisorial district. 
Tiffany; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin, Central SOMA 
neighborhood together in District 10, and include Visitacion Valley, Potrero Hill, and the 
Bayview neighborhoods together in District 10. 
Rachel; requested that the Task Force recognize the Inner Sunset and include the 
neighborhood wholly within District 7. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the North of Panhandle neighborhood 
and retain the area wholly within District 5. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 9, 2022 
 
 

 Page 9 

Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the Inner Sunset and include the 
neighborhood wholly within District 7. 
Julie Pitta; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process and 
requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, and West Clay Park 
neighborhoods in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Apoorv; requested that the Task Force include the North of Panhandle neighborhood 
wholly within District 5. 
Virginia Marshal; requested that the Task Force include the Tenderloin and Treasure 
Island neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district, and suggested that the Task 
Force not include Lowell High School in District 4. 
John DeCastro; requested that the Task Force recognize the Potrero Hill, Showplace 
Square, and Dogpatch neighborhoods and retain them together in District 10, and 
observed that the area should not be considered an emerging neighborhood. 
George Wooding; requested that the Task Force not include areas south of Sloat 
Boulevard in District 4. 
Theresa Flandrich; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Jessica; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Lisa Awbrey; requested that the Task Force retain the North of Panhandle neighborhood 
with boundaries from Masonic Boulevard to Stanyan Street together with the Haight 
neighborhood in District 5, and shared concerns regarding transparency in the 
redistricting process. 
Joe; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Michael Nulty; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map 
Coalition and the 4D map, requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff 
neighborhood in District 2 rather than District 1, and requested that the Task Force 
retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Chuck Obermeyer (Mid-Market Neighbors); requested that the Task Force recognize the 
Mid-Market neighborhood and retain the area wholly within one supervisorial district. 
Sana Sethi (San Francisco Rising); shared concerns regarding transparency in the 
redistricting process, requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in 
District 2 rather than District 1, suggested that Treasure Island be added to District 3, 
that the Potrero Hill neighborhood be retained in District 10, and that the Tenderloin 
and Central SOMA neighborhoods be retained wholly within District 6. 
Josephine; shared the results of a recent online poll in regard to the neighborhoods of 
the Potrero Hill, Portola, Bayview, and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods. 
Ms. Chandler; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district with a boundary at Polk Street, and 
requested that the Task Force retain the Dogpatch in District 10 and the Portola 
neighborhood in District 9. 
Moe Jamil; endorsed Map 6 as pertains to the District 3 boundaries. 
Lynn; requested that the Task Force retain the Bayview and Potrero Hill neighborhoods 
together in District 10. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force consider the historically-marginalized 
communities of color throughout of the city, and requested that the Task Force retain the 
Bayview, Potrero Hill, Visitacion Valley, and Dogpatch neighborhoods wholly within 
District 10. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 9, 2022 
 
 

 Page 10 

Speaker; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in District 2 
rather than District 1. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Alison Heath; requested that the Task Force include the Dogpatch and Showplace 
Square neighborhoods in District 10. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Haight and Cole Valley neighborhoods 
together in District 5. 
Larissa Pedroncelli; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Robert Goldfarb, Executive Director (Leather and LGBTQ Cultural District); requested 
that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in 
District 6. 
Catherine Demaney; requested that the Task Force include the Dogpatch, Potrero Hill, 
and Showplace Square neighborhoods and retain them together wholly within 
District 10. 
Hope Williams-Burt; requested that the Task Force recognize Treasure Island community 
and keep it in mind throughout the redistricting process. 
Eva Lee; requested that the Task Force include the Russian Hill neighborhood in 
District 3 and requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Presidio Terrace 
neighborhoods in District 1 rather than District 2. 
Lee; endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the Tenderloin neighborhood and requested that 
the Task Force include the Tenderloin neighborhood in District 5. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force include the Lakeshore neighborhood in District 4 
rather than District 7. 
Jason Henderson; requested that the Task Force not include the Tenderloin 
neighborhood in District 5, suggested that the Task Force include the Lower Haight in 
District 5, that the Hub neighborhood be included in District 8, and that the Russian Hill 
neighborhood remain divided between two supervisorial districts. 
Carole Glosenger, President (Cole Valley Improvement Association); requested that the 
Task Force recognize the Cole Valley neighborhood and retain it wholly within one 
supervisorial district. 
Speaker; endorsed the number 6 map as pertains to the Cole Valley neighborhood. 
Curtis Wu (Japantown Task Force); requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin 
and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district, suggested that 
the Russian Hill neighborhood remain in District 2, and requested that the Task Force 
include the Seacliff neighborhood in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Dogpatch and Potrero Hill 
neighborhoods together in District 10, requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6, and requested that 
the Task Force include the Oceanview, Merced Heights, and Ingleside (OMI) 
neighborhoods in District 11. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Carolyn Constantino; shared concerns about the gentrification of the city. 
William Owen; shared the results of a recent online poll in regard to the neighborhoods 
of the Potrero Hill, Portola, Bayview, and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods. 
Calvin Welch; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Adam Pavlacka; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 9, 2022 
 
 

 Page 11 

Derek Lee; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Peter; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Uzuri Pease-Greene; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Angelica Cabande (SOMCAN); requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and 
Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district, suggested that the 
Potrero Hill and Bayview neighborhoods be retained wholly within District 10, and 
requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood within District 2 rather 
than District 1. 
Theresa Imperial; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central 
SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Joe Koonzler; requested that the Task Force draw district lines that are contiguous and 
compact, especially as pertains to District 2. 
Eleanor; requested that the Task Force recognize the Inner Sunset neighborhood and 
include the area in District 4. 
Francisco Herrera; requested that the Task Force include both sides of Valencia Street 
in one supervisorial district, requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff 
neighborhood in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Richard Ivanhoe; requested that the Task Force retain the central neighborhoods of the 
existing District 5 together within the new District 5 map, and requested that the Inner 
Sunset be included within District 5. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Naj Daniels; requested that the Task Force retain Potrero Hill within District 10. 
Erick Arguello (Calle 24 Latino Cultural District); requested that the Task Force set the 
western boundary between Districts 8 and 9 as Guerrero Street. 
Dr. Emily Murase (Japantown Task Force); shared various concerns with the Task 
Force. 
Marie Sorenson (Calle 24 Latino Cultural District); requested that the Task Force set the 
western boundary between Districts 8 and 9 as Guerrero Street. 
John Mendoza (Latino Democratic Club); requested that the Task Force set the western 
boundary between Districts 8 and 9 as Guerrero Street. 
 

Chair Townsend recessed the meeting beginning at 8:28 p.m., and reconvened the meeting 
at 9:01 p.m. 
 
 

The Task Force continued live line drawing and made the following adjustment to 
Map 6: 
 

• Add portions of Parnassus Heights to District 8, with boundaries at 
Edgewood Avenue, Parnassus Avenue, and Willard Street. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 9, 2022 
 
 

 Page 12 

 
At the guidance of Member Pierce, the Task Force requested Q2 Data and Research 
to visualize the following adjustments to Map 6, in order: 
 

• Add the Tenderloin neighborhood to District 6, with a western boundary at 
Polk Street, Elm Street, and Van Ness Avenue; 

• Add the Dogpatch neighborhood to District 10, with a northern boundary at 
Mariposa Street; 

• Add areas south of Market Street bounded by Beale Street and Folsom Street 
to District 3; 

• Add the Showplace Square neighborhood to District 10, with a northern 
boundary at Alameda Street; 

• Add the Hub neighborhood to District 5, with boundaries at 10th Street, 
Howard Street, 13th Street, and Market Street; 

• Add the Civic Center neighborhood to District 5; 
• Add the area bounded by Market Street, 2nd Street, Bryant Street, and the 

bay to District 3; 
• Add Treasure Island and Yerba Buena Island to District 3; 
• Move the boundary between Districts 2 and 3 to Broadway and Jones Street; 
• Add the area bounded by McAllister Street, Polk Street, and UN Plaza to 

District 6; 
• Add the area bounded by Mason Street, Post Street, and Van Ness Avenue to 

District 6; 
• Add the area bounded by Fulton Street, Divisadero Street, Turk Street, and 

Masonic Avenue to District 5; 
• Add the area bounded by Divisadero Street, O’Farrell Street, and Broderick 

Street to District 5; 
• Add the area bounded by Laguna Street, Haight Street, Waller Street, and 

Octavia Boulevard to District 5; 
• Add the Cole Valley and Ashbury Heights neighborhoods to District 5; 
• Add the Panhandle neighborhood to District 5; 
• Add the Lone Mountain neighborhood to District 1; and 
• Add the area bounded by San Jose Avenue, 24th Street, Guerrero Street, 

and 22nd Street to District 8. 
 

Jaime Clark, Redistricting Consultant (Q2 Data and Research); offered that she would 
save the changes made to Map 6. For reference, these changes will be labeled Map 6’ in 
these minutes. Map 6’ appears on the following page of these minutes.



San Francisco Redistricting Task Force
Board of Supervisors Redistricting

Map 6’ ;  April 9, 2022

District label shows district name, % deviation, total deviation.
This is a preliminary version of San Francisco’s Board of Supervisors districts and is not the final map of the Redistricting Task Force. This is a preliminary version, not a final draft.



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 9, 2022 
 
 

 Page 14 

 
Member Pierce, seconded by Member Jeremy Lee moved that this 6’ map be adopted as 
the Final Draft Map. Before the roll was called on the motion, Member Pierce withdrew 
the motion. 

 
 

The Task Force continued live line drawing with the following adjustments to 
Map 6’ in order: 
 

• Add blocks around and under the Bay Bridge in Rincon Hill to District 6; 
• Add Treasure Island and Yerba Buena Island to District 6; 
• Add the area bounded by Geary Boulevard, Polk Street, Post Street, and 

Mason Street to District 3; 
• Add the ACT Theatre to District 3, with boundaries at Taylor Street, Geary 

Boulevard, and Mason Street; 
• Add the area bounded by Turk Street, Van Ness Avenue, Geary Boulevard, 

and Polk Street to District 6; 
• Add the area bounded by Broadway, Van Ness Avenue, Vallejo Street, 

Leavenworth Street, and Glover Street to Jones Street to District 3; and 
• Add the northeast corner of the Yerba Buena Community Benefit District to 

District 6. 
 

At this point the 6’ map was out of population compliance, with District 3 at 5.66% over 
population. 

 
Q2 Data and Research made the following adjustment to Map 6’ to bring District 3 
into population compliance: 
 

• Add the area bounded by Broadway, Van Ness Avenue, Vallejo Street, 
Leavenworth Street, and Glover Street to Jones Street to District 2. 

 
Jaime Clark, Redistricting Consultant (Q2 Data and Research); offered that she would 
save the changes made to Map 6’. For reference, this map appears on the following page 
of these minutes.



San Francisco Redistricting Task Force
Board of Supervisors Redistricting

Map 6 adjusted ;  April 9, 2022

District label shows district name, % deviation, total deviation.
This is a preliminary version of San Francisco’s Board of Supervisors districts and is not the final map of the Redistricting Task Force. This is a preliminary version, not a final draft.



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 9, 2022 
 
 

 Page 16 

 
Member Hernández Gil, seconded by Member Pierce, moved that Map 6 be 
adjusted to include the Seacliff neighborhood and areas north of Lake Street in 
District 2, on a line best approximating the current boundaries set in 2012.  The 
motion failed by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 2 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil 
 
Noes: 7 -  Pierce, Castillon, Townsend, Ho, Cooper, Chasel Lee, Reiner 

 
 

Member Hernández Gil, seconded by Member Pierce, moved that the Task Force 
continue to work with the adjusted Map 6’, with Russian Hill in District 2 and a 
population-compliant District 3.  The motion failed by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 4 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Cooper 
 
Noes: 5 -  Castillon, Townsend, Ho, Chasel Lee, Reiner 

 
 

At the guidance of Member Castillon, the Task Force requested Q2 Data and 
Research to visualize the following adjustments to Map 6, in order: 

 
• Add the North of Panhandle neighborhood to District 5, with boundaries at 

Masonic Avenue, Turk Street, Divisadero Street, and Fulton Street; 
• Add areas in Cathedral Hill to District 2, with boundaries at Laguna Street, 

Golden Gate Avenue, and Van Ness Avenue; 
• Add areas in Russian Hill to District 3, with boundaries at Hyde Street, 

Chestnut Street, and Van Ness Avenue; 
• Add the area bounded by 5th Avenue, Lake Street, Arguello Boulevard, and 

Pacific Avenue to District 2; 
• Add the Haight-Ashbury neighborhood to District 8; 
• Add portions of the American Indian Cultural District to District 9 with 

boundaries at 17th Street, Dolores Street, 13th Street, and Duboce Avenue; 
• Add the Saint Mary’s Park and Holly Park neighborhoods to District 9, with 

a boundary at San Jose Avenue; 
• Add portions of the American Indian Cultural District to District 9, with 

boundaries at 14th Street, Church Street, and 16th Street; 
• Add the University Mound and Portola neighborhoods to District 10; 
• Add the Potrero Hill neighborhood to District 9; 
• Add the Potrero Terrace Annex to District 10; and 
• Add parts of the University Mound neighborhood west of Cambridge Street 

to McLaren Park to District 11. 
 

Following Task Force discussion, Q2 Data and Research reversed the changes listed 
above. 

 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 9, 2022 
 
 

 Page 17 

At the guidance of Member Castillon, the Task Force requested Q2 Data and 
Research to visualize the following adjustments to Map 6, in order: 

 
• Add the University Mound and Portola neighborhoods to District 10; and 
• Add the Potrero Hill neighborhood to District 9. 

 
 

Member Castillon, seconded by Member Pierce, moved that the adjusted Map 6 be 
changed to include the Portola and University Mound neighborhoods in District 10, 
and the Potrero Hill neighborhood in District 9.  The motion failed by the following 
vote: 
 
Ayes: 4 -  Castillon, Townsend, Ho, Chasel Lee 
 
Noes: 5 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Cooper, Reiner 

 
Member Pierce, seconded by Vice Chair Reiner moved that the 6’ map be adopted as the 
Final Draft Map. Before the roll was called on the motion, Member Chasel Lee brought a 
point of order, asserting that the motion to return to the 6’ map was not in order as 
Member Pierce was in the minority in the vote that the Task Force continue to work with 
the adjusted Map 6’, with Russian Hill in District 2 and a population-compliant District 
3. A roll call vote was not taken on the new motion. Before the matter was resolved, 
Chair Townsend called a recess beginning at 1:19 a.m., Sunday, April 10, 2022. 

 
Chair Townsend reconvened the meeting at 1:53 a.m. 
 
 

Member Reiner, seconded by Member Ho, moved that the previous motion be 
rescinded. This being the motion that the adjusted Map 6 be changed to include the 
Portola and University Mound neighborhoods in District 10, and the Potrero Hill 
neighborhood in District 9.  The motion prevailed by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 5 -  Castillon, Townsend, Ho, Chasel Lee, Reiner 
 
Noes: 4 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Cooper 

 
 

Member Castillon, seconded by Member Reiner, moved that the adjusted Map 6 be 
changed to include the Portola and University Mound neighborhoods in District 10, 
and the Potrero Hill neighborhood in District 9.  The motion prevailed by the 
following vote: 
 
Ayes: 5 -  Castillon, Townsend, Ho, Chasel Lee, Reiner 
 
Noes: 4 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Cooper 

 
Members Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, and Pierce were noted absent at 2:02 a.m., and for the 
remainder of the meeting. Member Cooper was noted absent at 2:02 a.m. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 9, 2022 
 
 

 Page 18 

 
Member Cooper was noted present at 2:19 a.m. Member Cooper was noted absent at 2:20 a.m., 
and for the remainder of the meeting. 
 

At the guidance of Member Castillon, the Task Force requested Q2 Data and 
Research to make the following adjustments to Map 6, in order: 

 
• Add the North of Panhandle neighborhood to District 5, with boundaries at 

Masonic Avenue, Turk Street, Divisadero Street, and Fulton Street; 
• Add areas in Cathedral Hill to District 2, with boundaries at Laguna Street, 

Golden Gate Avenue, and Van Ness Avenue; 
• Add the areas bounded by Chestnut Street, Hyde Street, and Van Ness 

Avenue to District 2; 
• Add the area bounded by 5th Avenue, Lake Street, Arguello Boulevard, and 

Pacific Avenue to District 2; and 
• Add a portion of the Mid-Market neighborhood to District 6, with 

boundaries at Fell Street, Franklin Street, Lily Street, and Gough Street. 
 
Chair Townsend called a recess beginning at 2:46 a.m., and reconvened the meeting at 3:21 a.m. 
 
 

Member Castillon, seconded by Member Ho, moved that the adjusted Map 6 be 
adopted as the Final Draft Map.  The motion prevailed by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 5 -  Castillon, Townsend, Ho, Chasel Lee, Reiner 
 
Absent: 4 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Cooper 

 
 

For reference, the Final Draft Map appears on the following page of these minutes. 



San Francisco Redistricting Task Force
Board of Supervisors Redistricting

Draft Final Map; April 9, 2022

District label shows district name, % deviation, total deviation.



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 9, 2022 
 
 

 Page 20 

 
3. General Public Comment 

 
Chair Townsend recessed the meeting beginning at 4:20 a.m., and reconvened the meeting 
at 4:35 a.m. Sunday, April 10, 2022. 

 
Speakers: Uzuri Pease-Greene; Geoffrea Morris; Brenda Barros; Naj Daniels; Yolanda 
Daniels; John Avalos; Jason Lee; Francisco Herrera; Cheryl Jackson; Zach Lipton; 
Bobak Esfandiari; Tinisch Hollings Shaw San Liu; Walter Caplan; Kristine Zaback; 
William Walker; Jennifer Parkes; thanked the Task Force for their service. Alec Bash; 
Curtis Bradford, Co-Chair (Tenderloin Peoples Congress); Jaime Deloria; David Woo; 
Kevin Ortiz (San Francisco Latinx Democratic Club); Jupiter Peraza (Transgender 
Cultural District); Josephine Zhao; Karen Pierce; Francisco da Costa; Speaker; David 
Elliott Lewis; Hope Williams; Edward Wright, President (Harvey Milk LGBTQ 
Democratic Club); Dr. Saidah Leatutufu-Burch; Michelle Pierce; Peter Van Dyke; 
Speaker; Melissa Hernandez; Simon Timony (Advocates Eleven); Joshua Herbert; Adam 
Pavlacka; Andrew Sun; Michael Nulty; Sana Sethi; Ms. Ying; Chelsea Waite; Anastasia 
Yovanopoulos; Julie Soo; Russel Morine; David Pilpel; Natalie Gee; Calvin Quick; 
Larry Griffin; Jen Tse; Raynell Cooper; Julian LaRosa; Nick Doyle; Speaker; Betty 
Louie; Angelica Cabande; Luke Bornheimer; Raquel Redondiez; Alan Buradell; 
DeAnthony Jones; shared various reactions to the events of this meeting. 

 
At the conclusion of the discussion, Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 
 

4. Adjournment 
 

There being no further business, the Redistricting Task Force adjourned at the hour 
of 5:39 a.m., Sunday April 10, 2022. 
 
N.B. The Minutes of this meeting set forth all actions taken by the Redistricting Task 
Force on the matters stated, but not necessarily in the chronological sequence in which 
the matters were taken up. 



 
REDISTRICTING TASK FORCE 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 
MINUTES 

 
 

City Hall, Room 408 
(remote access provided) 

(remote public comment provided via teleconference) 
www.sfgovtv.org  

 
April 11, 2022 – 5:30 PM 

 
Special Meeting 

 
Members: Jeremy Lee, Jose Maria (Chema) Hernández Gil, J. Michelle Pierce, Matthew 

Castillon, Arnold Townsend, Lily Ho, Raynell Cooper, Chasel Lee, Ditka Reiner 
 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
The Redistricting Task Force met in special session, in-person with remote access and 
public comment via telephone and videoconference, on Monday, April 11, 2022. Chair 
Reverend Arnold Townsend called the meeting to order at 5:58 p.m. 
 
On the call of the roll, Chair Townsend, Member Jeremy Lee (attending remotely), 
Member Hernández Gil, Member Pierce, Member Castillon, Member Ho, Member 
Cooper, Member Chasel Lee, and Member Reiner were noted present.   
 
A quorum was present. 

 
2. 2. Final Draft Map 

 
Member Jeremy Lee provided a public apology for comments made during the Special 
Meeting on April 9, 2022.  
 
Members Cooper and Hernandez Gil provided brief remarks on the purpose and 
obligations of the Task Force and its Members, along with context for actions taken 
during the last meeting.  
 
Speakers: Reverend Amos Brown; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and 
requested the Task Force consider the African-American community.  
Walter Caplan; expressed concerns regarding the composition of the Task Force and the 
limited representation that doesn’t account for the entire population. 
Alan Burradell; expressed concerns regarding the composition of the Task Force and the 
limited representation that doesn’t account for the entire population. 

http://www.sfgovtv.org/


Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 11, 2022 
 
 

 Page 2 

Judy Clark; requested that Lakeshore Acres and Merced Manor be included in District 7, 
rather than District 4. 
Hazel Lee; requested that the Task Force include the Portola in District 10. 
Kristine Zaback; requested the Task Force take more time to allow more evaluation of 
the communities and Final Map.  
Reverend Dr. Rotchschild; expressed support for the Draft Final Map and thanked the 
Members for their service. 
Chelsea Wait; expressed support for the Draft Final Map and thanked the Members for 
their service and the democratic process. 
Bradley Solomon; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in 
District 1. 
Yolanda Williams; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested the Task 
Force consider the African-American community. 
Cheryl Thornton; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested the Task 
Force consider the African-American community. 
Uzuri Pease-Greene; expressed concerns regarding various Members and requested the 
Task Force reconsider the Draft Final Map. 
Forrest; expressed concerns regarding the hate directed at the Asian-American 
community and encouraged the communities to come together. 
Brenda Barros; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested the Task 
Force reconsider their previous vote. 
Naj Daniels; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested the Task Force 
reconsider their previous vote. 
Ms. Irving; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested the Task Force 
reconsider their previous vote. 
Richard Ivanhoe; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested the Task 
Force reconsider their previous vote. 
Lisselli Mulalla; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested the Task 
Force reconsider the community unity map. 
James Traun; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested the Task Force 
reconsider their previous vote. 
Maxine Tam; encouraged the communities to come together and thanked certain 
Members for coming back to the table.  
Julian LaRosa; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and concerns regarding the 
westside of the map and the split of the Bayview. 
Alicia Sandoval; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested the Task 
Force reconsider splitting communities.  
Race Bannon; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested the Task Force 
reconsider splitting the LGBTQ communities. 
Alida Fischer; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested that the Task 
Force include the Portola neighborhood in District 10. 
Andrew Sun; expressed support of the Final Draft Map and concerns regarding the 
representation in District 10. 
Leah McGeever; expressed concerns about breaking up the Trans District and requested 
the Task Force keep the Trans community together. 
Jeremy Linden; expressed support for the work done by the Members and them not 
breaking up the Northern SoMa neighborhood. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 11, 2022 
 
 

 Page 3 

Will Frankel; expressed support for the work done by the Members and the non-partisan 
efforts made. 
DeAnthony Jones; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested the Task 
Force reconsider their previous vote. 
Dr. Saidah Leatutufu-Burch; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and support of 
the Six Prime Map.  
John McCormick; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested the Task 
Force reconsider their previous vote. 
Tab Buckner; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested the Task Force 
reconsider their previous vote. 
Casey Ho; expressed concerns about language access, late night decisions, and delayed 
release of maps.  
Lai Wa Wu; expressed concerns regarding the divisiveness caused between the African-
American and Asian-American communities and the need to work together.  
Veronica Shephard; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and concerns 
regarding the divisiveness caused between the African-American and Asian-American 
communities. 
Jonathan Butler; expressed concerns regarding the divisiveness caused amongst the 
communities. 
Akaylah Hernandez; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested the Task 
Force reconsider their previous vote. 
Don Misumi; expressed support of the Members who walked out during the last meeting 
and concerns regarding the divisiveness caused amongst the communities. 
Fernando Marti; expressed support of the Members who walked out during the last 
meeting and concerns regarding the divisiveness caused amongst the communities. 
Marie Sorenson; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested they unite 
Potrero and SoMa. 
Karen Pierce; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and concerns regarding 
actions taken late in the night during previous meetings. 
Christopher Cook; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested the Task 
Force reconsider their previous vote. 
Erick Arguello; requested reconsideration of the Mission District and placing Potrero 
back into District 10.  
Nancy Tung; shared concerns regarding the divisiveness caused and encouraged the 
communities to work together. 
LaVonne B. Macintosh; shared concerns regarding the divisiveness caused and 
encouraged the communities to work together. 
Susan Marsh; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and its impact on the African-
American community. 
TJ Holtzman; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and concerns regarding 
actions taken that have divided communities. 
Christopher Christensen; expressed concerns regarding actions taken in the middle of 
the night that favor affluent communities.  
Kevin Ortiz; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and the displacement of 
communities on the westside.  
Jupiter Peraza; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and concerns regarding the 
integrity of the decisions made by the Task Force. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 11, 2022 
 
 

 Page 4 

Speaker; expressed support of bringing the Portola and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods 
together. 
Keith Goldstein; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and concerns regarding 
the division of the Potrero and Dogpatch communities. 
Donovan Lacey; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and concerns regarding 
the division of the Potrero and Dogpatch communities. 
JR Eppler; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and actions taken during the 
middle of the night. 
Eleanore; expressed support for the Members who walked out of the previous meeting 
and requested the Task Force reconsider their previous vote.  
Speaker; expressed concerns regarding the division of the African-American 
communities and the impact to elections. 
Yan Mai Guan; requested that the Task Force keep the Visitacion Valley and Potrero 
neighborhoods together, and 14th Avenue remain in District 4. 
Wuan Wu; expressed support for Portola and Visitation Valley together in D10 and 
uplifting Supervisor Walton as an African American Supervisor. 
Sun Nen Khoo; expressed support for Portola and Visitation Valley together in D10 and 
uplifting Supervisor Walton as an African American Supervisor. 
Chey Ying Wong; expressed support for Portola and Visitation Valley together in D10, 
speaker has been waiting 20 years to have these communities be placed together, and 
support our African American Supervisor. 
Mei Yi Jao; expressed support for Portola and Visitation Valley together in D10 and 
highlighted her support of uplifting the African American Community. 
Chew Yum Si Tu; expressed support for Portola and Visitation Valley together in District 
10, a vision that the community has been waiting for twenty years, and uplifting 
Supervisor Walton as an African American Supervisor. 
Liu Ying Fong; expressed support for Portola and Visitation Valley together in D10 and 
uplifting the City’s African American Supervisor and community. 
Jessica; thanked the Task Force for the work they had contributed to the community and 
requested that the Task Force also add Inner Sunset into D4. 
Qing Tao Wu; expressed support of Potrero and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods being 
united and bringing together communities. 
Tinisch Hollins; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and the divisiveness 
caused. 
Tiffany Carter; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and the affect is has on 
African-American communities. 
Gwendolyn Brown; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and the affect is has on 
African-American communities. 
Dennis Mosgofian; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and its benefits to real 
estate developers that undermine the progressive districts. 
Kim Tavalione; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and the divisiveness caused 
throughout the various communities. 
Olga Miranda; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and the changes that will 
cause more out-migration of those who provide labor services. 
Scott Feeney; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and the actions taken during 
the middle of the night that divides communities. 
Lynn Hoye; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and the need to consider a map 
that unites communities of color.  



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 11, 2022 
 
 

 Page 5 

Marie Hurabiell; thanked the Members of the Task Force and spoke in support of the 
Draft Final Map, even though it is flawed, and its legality. 
Allan Samson Manalo; spoke in opposition to the actions taken in the middle of the night 
during the last meeting that reverse the wishes of the community. 
Curtis Bradford; thanked the Members who walked out during the last meeting and 
requested the Task Force reconsider their previous vote. 
Jason Lee; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and the division of communities 
that needs to be reconsidered. 
Drew Aminn; expressed concerns regarding the lack of honor and integrity expressed by 
those who disregard and minimize the Asian-American communities. 
Amalia; expressed support of the Final Draft Map and concerns about the lack of 
advocacy for Asian-Americans. 
Bobak Esfandiari; expressed concerns regarding the sabotage of the redistricting process 
to minimize the integrity of the decisions made. 
Jaime Deloria; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and the need for democracy 
to represent the marginalized communities. 
Cheryl Jackson; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and the divisiveness caused 
between the communities. 
Richard Stodem; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map. 
Jeff; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and the divisiveness caused between 
the communities of color. 
Steve Lee; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and the divisiveness caused 
between marginalized communities. 
Will Jarett; requested to speak with Task Force embers during the next break. 
Emily Lee; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and in support of the Members 
who walked out during the last meeting. 
Mike Chen; reiterated the actions taken by the Elections Commission and the need for the 
Task Force to remain independent to fulfill its Charter duties. 
Jill Shenker; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and the divisiveness caused 
between the communities. 
Geoffrea Morris; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and the lack of African-
American representation throughout the various Districts. 
David Woo; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and the divisiveness caused 
between the communities. 
Francisco Herrera; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and in support of 
reverting back to the Six Prime Map. 
Selena; expressed support for the Task Force and encouraged them to continue using 
their best judgement. 
William Walker; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map, shared another map and 
requested the Task Force delay their decision. 
Raquel Redondiez; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and the gentrification 
occurring throughout the City.  
Katrina Liwanag; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and the divisiveness 
caused between the communities. 
Carolyn Nguyen; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and the divisiveness caused 
between the communities of color. 
Rene; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and its favoritism towards developers. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 11, 2022 
 
 

 Page 6 

Jen Tse; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and the need to acknowledge the 
various communities of interest. 
Gary Gregerson; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and its affect on district 
elections. 
Steven Currier; thanked the Members for their service and requested they reconsider the 
Final Draft Map.  
Sally Stephens; spoke in support of the Final Draft Map, but requested Potrero be put 
back in District 10 and Portola back in District 9. 
Louise Antonio; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested SoMa be kept 
whole. 
Speaker; spoke in support of the Final Draft Map and the democratic process. 
Speaker; spoke in support of the Final Draft Map and thanked the Members for executing 
a fair and legal process. 
Eileen Boken; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and the mapping process. 
Francisco Da Costa; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and expressed the need 
to reconsider marginalized communities.  
Chiffon Leu; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and violations that may have 
occurred during the process. 
Connie Liu; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and the disregard for the 
working-class people of color.  
Wen Zhen An; spoke on concerns regarding keeping communities together.  
Theresa Palmer; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and the disregard for public 
commenters. 
David Elliott Lewis; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and the divisiveness 
caused amongst the communities of color. 
Jian Ren Zhang; spoke in support of the Final Draft Map and thanked the Members of 
the Task Force. 
Kurtis Wu; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and the divisiveness caused 
between the communities of color. 
Sophia Andary; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested they rescind 
their previous vote. 
Larry Griffin; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested they rescind 
their previous vote. 
Stacy Randecker; expressed the need for Potrero and Dogpatch to remain together.  
Carlos Gonzalez; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and the need to consider 
communities of interest. 
Alicia Montado; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and the lack of respect show 
to communities of interest who have participated in the process. 
Peter Warfield; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and the issues surrounding 
access to the redistricting process. 
Nancy; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and the lack of transparency during 
the redistricting process. 
Paulina Fayer; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and how it will affect the 
already poor conditions of the City. 
An Shan Su; expressed support of the Task Force and their work considering all of the 
various opinions. 
Speaker; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and the need to stand up for the 
African-American and working-class communities. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 11, 2022 
 
 

 Page 7 

Bob Golfarb; spoke in opposition to the Final Draft Map and the detriment to the system. 
Ding Leung; expressed support of the Task Force and the need to unite Portola and 
Visitacion Valley neighborhoods. 
Steve Marza; expressed support for the Final Draft Map and acknowledged the hard 
choices that were made during a challenging process.  
Speaker; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and questioned the legality of past 
task force decisions. 
Shavonne Hunter; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and the disregard for the 
efforts of the African-American voice. 
Natalie Gee; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and expressed disappointment 
of uniting the Asian community at the expense of the African American community. 
Arlene Drummer; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and expressed 
disappointment of uniting the Asian community at the expense of the African American 
community. 
Dina Williams; expressed support of the Final Draft Map despite their suggestions not 
being accepted, and encourage the Task Force remain united despite public negativity. 
Maria dela Mora; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and request the Task 
Force reconsider their decision. 
Reverend Dr. Carolyn Scott; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and request the 
Task Force rescind their decision. 
Speaker; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map, and disappointment in the 
redistricting process. 
Betty Louie; expressed gratitude for the efforts of the Task Force and encouraged 
continued collaboration throughout the communities. 
Leilani; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and concern for a lack of support 
for the Pacific Islander and African-American community and request for the Task Force 
to reconsider their decision. 
Mark Dietrich; expressed gratitude for the efforts of the Task Force through the 
redistricting process and support of their work. 
Speaker; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and disappointment in the lack of 
consideration of public comments toward the decisions. 
Eva Chrisanti; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and request the Task Force 
rescind their decision. 
Gilbert Crisswell; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map, disappointment with the 
lack of consideration of public comments toward the decisions, and request that the Task 
Force to reconsider their decision. 
Bob Harrer; expressed support of the Final Draft Map, and gratitude for the efforts of 
the Task Force to provide map on time. 
Jessica Perla; expressed gratitude for the efforts of the Task Force through the 
redistricting process and support of their work. 
Elaine Villasper; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map, disappointment in the 
consideration of redistricting process and request that the Task Force to reconsider their 
decision. 
Camillia Mena; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map, disappointment in the 
redistricting process, and request that the Task Force to reconsider their decision. 
Mike Sizemore; expressed gratitude for the efforts of the Task Force through the 
redistricting process and support of their work. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 11, 2022 
 
 

 Page 8 

Oliver Saria; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map, and the lack of consideration 
of public comments toward the task force’s decision making, and request that the Task 
Force to reconsider their decision. 
Joe Alcatraz; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map, and supported adding 
Alcatraz, Treasure Island and Bay Bridge to District 2. 
Julio Bardjlla; expressed gratitude for the efforts of the Task Force through the 
redistricting process and support of their work. 
Speaker; expressed gratitude for the efforts of the Task Force through the redistricting 
process and opposition to the Unity Map. 
Emily Wang; expressed concerns of the effects of the Eastern Neighborhood Plan in 
District 10. 
Tiffany Ng; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and support of the task force 
members who walked out, and effects of the changes toward marginalized communities in 
Districts 6 and 10. 
Derek; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map, and encouraged addition of census 
tracts according to wealth disparities for more equity. 
Simone; expressed support of the Final Draft Map, and that the current map reverses 
gerrymandering from 10-years ago. 
Sheila Dolan; expressed support of the Final Draft Map, and expressed gratitude for the 
Task Force and their efforts throughout the redistricting process. 
Senna SF Rising; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map, disappointment in the 
redistricting process, and lack of consideration for public comment toward the Task 
Force’s decision making, request that the Task Force to reconsider and delay their 
decision. 
Edward Wright (Harvey Milk Democratic Club); expressed opposition to the Final Draft 
Map and its negative effect on the LGBTQ and Trans community, and reconsider and 
delay their decision. 
Sietse Goffard; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map, disappointment in the 
redistricting process, and lack of consideration for public comment and input from 
Communities of Interest toward the Task Force’s decision making, and request that the 
Task Force to reconsider their decision. 
Joshua Ochoa (SF Berniecrats); expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map, 
disappointment in the redistricting process, and support for the Unity Map. 
Jennifer Parks; expressed gratitude for the efforts of the Task Force through the 
redistricting process and support of their work. 
Virginia Marshall; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map, disappointment in the 
redistricting process, support for the 4D Map and reconsider their decision. 
Speaker; expressed support for the efforts of the Task Force through the redistricting 
process and support of their work in establishing a legal and fair Final Draft Map. 
David Liu; expressed support for Portola and Visitation Valley together in D10 and 
expressed support for the efforts of the Task Force through the redistricting process. 
Speaker; expressed support for the efforts of the Task Force through the redistricting 
process and support of their work in establishing a map that corrects gerrymandering of 
previous maps. 
Edward Chirizono; expressed support for the efforts of the Task Force. 
Chris Chang, expressed support for the efforts of the Task Force through the redistricting 
process and support of their work in establishing a Final Draft Map, and appreciation 
for their volunteered time. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 11, 2022 
 
 

 Page 9 

Rosario Cevantes, expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map, disappointment in the 
redistricting process, and lack of consideration for public comment toward the Task 
Force’s decision making, request that the Task Force to reconsider and delay their 
decision. 
Keith Ledger; expressed support for the efforts of the Task Force through the 
redistricting process and support of their work in establishing a legal and fair Final 
Draft Map on time. 
Larisa Pedroncelli; expressed opposition to the Final Draft Map and concerns with the 
displacement of people of color. 
Philippe Sonne; expressed support for the efforts of the Task Force through the 
redistricting process, support of their work in establishing a legal and balanced Final 
Draft Map on time, and encourage the Task Force to approve the map. 
Adam Pavlacka; expressed support for the Final Draft Map, and support of their work 
through the redistricting process. 
Jon Yeun Wong; expressed concern over the divisiveness caused between the 
communities over the redistricting process, and expressed support for the efforts of the 
Task Force. 
Theo Gordon; expressed support for the Final Draft Map, and gratitude for support of 
their work and concerns regarding the divisiveness through the redistricting process. 
Michael Nulty; expressed gratitude expressed for the efforts of the Task Force throughout 
the redistricting process. 
Alec Bash; expressed support of the efforts of the Task Force, and support of their work 
throughout the redistricting process in establishing a Final Draft Map. 
Patricia; expressed support for Portola and Visitation Valley together in District 10, a 
vision that the community has been waiting for twenty years, and uplifting the African 
American Community. 
Shelly; expressed support for Portola and Visitation Valley together in District 10, a 
vision that the community has been waiting for twenty years, and being united and 
bringing together renter communities in the District. 
Yen; expressed support for Portola and Visitation Valley together in District 10, a vision 
that the community has been waiting for twenty years, and uplifting Supervisor Walton as 
an African American Supervisor. 
Sylvia; expressed support for Portola and Visitation Valley together in District 10, and 
endeavor to support affordable housing and bringing together renter communities in the 
District. 
La Zhou; expressed support for Portola and Visitation Valley together in District 10, a 
vision that the community has been waiting for twenty years, and being united and 
bringing together renter communities in the District. 
Qi Dai; expressed support for Portola and Visitation Valley together in District 10, a 
vision that the community has been waiting for twenty years, and uplifting Supervisor 
Walton as an African American Supervisor. 
Chen Ying Pen; expressed support for Portola and Visitation Valley together in 
District 10, a vision that the community has been waiting for twenty years, bringing 
together renter communities in the District, and uplifting Supervisor Walton as an 
African American Supervisor. 
Yu Jao Khoo; expressed support for Portola and Visitation Valley together in District 10, 
a vision that the community has been waiting for twenty years, bringing together renter 
communities in the District. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 11, 2022 
 
 

 Page 10 

Sam; expressed support for Portola and Visitation Valley together in District 10, a vision 
that the community has been waiting for twenty years, bringing together renter 
communities in the District. 
Eih Men Penn; expressed support for Portola and Visitation Valley together in 
District 10, a vision that the community has been waiting for twenty years, bringing 
together renter communities in the District. 

 
Chair Townsend recessed the meeting beginning at 1:38 a.m. and reconvened the meeting 
at 2:10 a.m. 
 

Member Pierce provided brief remarks the on the need and rights for personal safety of 
Members of the Redistricting Task Force. She further noted that there have been no 
influences from the Board of Supervisors, expanded on how the current map will 
influence the various communities, and reiterated that the consequences go beyond 
individual elections.   
 
Chair Townsend request DCA Andrew Shen provide a report on the consequences for not 
complying with the April 15th deadline to approve a Final Redistricting Map.  Chair 
Townsend request that a list of possible dates for additional meetings be provided for 
consideration.       
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 
 

Chair Townsend requested that Agenda Item Nos. 3 and 4 be called together. 
 

3.  Task Force Final Report 
 
Member Pierce moved that Item No. 3 be Tabled and considered on Wednesday, 
April 13, 2022. It was brought to her attention that the matter is already on the agenda 
for that day; Member Pierce rescinded this motion. 
 
Speakers: Josephine Zhao; expressed support for Portola moved to District 10 and 
working together with the African American community.  
Jaime; thank the staff for their support and expressed appreciation to all parties who 
participated in the process. 
Karen Pierce; thanked various staff members and Task Force Members for their support 
and provided various comments. 
Bobak Esfandiari; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Raquel Redondiez; requested that the Final Report contain supporting information and 
justification for the actions of the Task Force in creating the Final Draft Map. 
Speaker; providing information on their experience in working with the community and 
stated that the Redistrict Task Force did not listen to the community. 
Geoffrea Morris; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and noted 
issues with the Map and community disparities.  
Christopher Christensen spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and 
expressed concern with city government.   
Selina; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and expressed concern 
with the unjustified focus on the Asian population. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 11, 2022 
 
 

 Page 11 

John Avalos; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter, thank members of 
all parities involved but noted that there is no justification for the Final Draft Map and 
that it is harmful.  
Tad Buckner; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and requested the 
Task Force to reject the proposed draft. 
Kevin Ortiz: spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and noted that the 
Task Force Members are not listening to the community.    
David Elliot Lewis; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and noted 
that additional work is needed to create a better map. 
Peter Warfield; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and noted that 
the Map is unjust. 
Maria Harabiell; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and stated 
that the Task Force should meet the deadline but additional work is needed. 
 RJ Sloan; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and not that the 
Final Draft Map is not a moral document. 
Jessica Perla; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and thank the 
staff for their work. 
Stacy Endecker; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and provided 
suggested changes to the Final Draft Map. 
Michael Nulty; spoke on various concerns related to the hearing matter and note 
problems with the Final Draft Map. 
Speaker; suggest that members of the Task Force dissent in voting for the map. 
Yolonda Williams; spoke on various concerns related to the hearing matter and noted 
problems with the map.  
Speaker; spoke on various concerns related to the hearing matter and request a no vote. 
Dr. Siadah Leatutufu Burch; spoke on various concerns related to the hearing matter and 
various deadlines.   
Adam Pavlacka spoke on various concerns related to the hearing matter and the lack of 
affordable housing. 
Brenda Barros; spoke on various concerns related to the hearing matter, requested a 
change to the deadline and review the Map further. 
Ms. Green; spoke on various concerns related to the hearing matter, noted that the 
deadline can be extended, and stated that the map is harmful. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 
 

4. General Public Comment 
 
Speakers: Josephine Zhao; expressed support for Portola moved to District 10 and 
working together with the African American community.  
Jaime; thank the staff for their support and expressed appreciation to all parties who 
participated in the process. 
Karen Pierce; thanked various staff members and Task Force Members for their support 
and provided various comments. 
Bobak Esfandiari; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Raquel Redondiez; requested that the Final Report contain supporting information and 
justification for the actions of the Task Force in creating the Final Draft Map. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 11, 2022 
 
 

 Page 12 

Speaker; providing information on their experience in working with the community and 
stated that the Redistrict Task Force did not listen to the community. 
Geoffrea Morris; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and noted 
issues with the Map and community disparities.  
Christopher Christensen spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and 
expressed concern with city government.   
Selina; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and expressed concern 
with the unjustified focus on the Asian population. 
John Avalos; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter, thank members of 
all parities involved but noted that there is no justification for the Final Draft Map and 
that it is harmful.  
Tad Buckner; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and requested the 
Task Force to reject the proposed draft. 
Kevin Ortiz: spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and noted that the 
Task Force Members are not listening to the community.    
David Elliot Lewis; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and noted 
that additional work is needed to create a better map. 
Peter Warfield; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and noted that 
the Map is unjust. 
Maria Harabiell; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and stated 
that the Task Force should meet the deadline but additional work is needed. 
 RJ Sloan; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and not that the 
Final Draft Map is not a moral document. 
Jessica Perla; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and thank the 
staff for their work. 
Stacy Endecker; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter and provided 
suggested changes to the Final Draft Map. 
Michael Nulty; spoke on various concerns related to the hearing matter and note 
problems with the Final Draft Map. 
Speaker; suggest that members of the Task Force dissent in voting for the map. 
Yolonda Williams; spoke on various concerns related to the hearing matter and noted 
problems with the map.  
Speaker; spoke on various concerns related to the hearing matter and request a no vote. 
Dr. Siadah Leatutufu Burch; spoke on various concerns related to the hearing matter and 
various deadlines.   
Adam Pavlacka spoke on various concerns related to the hearing matter and the lack of 
affordable housing. 
Brenda Barros; spoke on various concerns related to the hearing matter, requested a 
change to the deadline and review the Map further. 
Ms. Green; spoke on various concerns related to the hearing matter, noted that the 
deadline can be extended, and stated that the map is harmful. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 11, 2022 
 
 

 Page 13 

 
5. Adjournment 
 

There being no further business, the Redistricting Task Force adjourned at the hour 
of 4:26 a.m. 
 
N.B. The Minutes of this meeting set forth all actions taken by the Redistricting Task 
Force on the matters stated, but not necessarily in the chronological sequence in which 
the matters were taken up. 



 
REDISTRICTING TASK FORCE 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 
MINUTES 

 
 

City Hall, Room 408 
(remote access provided) 

(remote public comment provided via teleconference) 
www.sfgovtv.org  

 
April 13, 2022 – 3:00 PM 

 
Rescheduled Meeting 

 
Members: Jeremy Lee, Jose Maria (Chema) Hernández Gil, J. Michelle Pierce, Matthew 

Castillon, Arnold Townsend, Lily Ho, Raynell Cooper, Chasel Lee, Ditka Reiner 
 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
The Redistricting Task Force met in rescheduled session, in-person with remote access 
and public comment via telephone and videoconference, on Wednesday, April 13, 2022. 
Chair Reverend Arnold Townsend called the meeting to order at 3:18 p.m. 
 
On the call of the roll, Chair Townsend, Member Jeremy Lee, Member Hernández Gil, 
Member Pierce, Member Castillon, Member Ho, Member Cooper, Member Chasel Lee, 
and Member Reiner were noted present. Member Jeremy Lee and Vice Chair Reiner were 
attending remotely. 
 
A quorum was present. 

 
 
2. Final Draft Map 

 
Chair Townsend shared that he is considering extending the Task Force work on the 
map, and is entertaining the thought of surpassing the April 15, 2022, Final Map 
deadline. Ana Flores, Deputy City Attorney (Office of the City Attorney), Jaime Clark, 
Redistricting Consultant (Q2 Data and Research); and Angela Calvillo, Clerk of the 
Board (Board of Supervisors); answered questions raised throughout the discussion.   
 
Member Pierce moved that the Final Draft Map be rejected and that the work of the Task 
Force should continue.  The motion died by a lack of a second. 

http://www.sfgovtv.org/


Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 13, 2022 
 
 

 Page 2 

 
Member Ho offered a technical adjustment to the Final Draft Map to add a portion of the 
Potrero Annex to District 10, with boundaries at Cesar Chavez, Connecticut Street, 26th 
Street, Wisconsin Street, 23rd Street, Missouri Street, Sierra Street, 22nd Street, and 
Interstate 280. This change would adjust the district for more than 1,100 people and 
could not be offered as a technical adjustment. The adjustment was not made to the Final 
Draft Map. 
 
Members Castillon and Chasel Lee offered technical adjustments to the Final Draft Map 
as follows: 

• Unify the two halves of the Golden Gate Park panhandle bounded by Stanyan 
Street, Fell Street, Oak Street, and Masonic Avenue within District 5; 

• Add the area bounded by Van Ness Avenue, Dr. Tom Waddell Place, and 
Carleton B. Goodlett Place to District 5; 

• Add the Margaret Hayward Playground in Jefferson Square Park to District 5; 
• Add one block to the west of Edgewood Avenue in Parnassus Heights to 

District 8; 
• Add the San Francisco Zoo to District 7; and 
• Add all of Saint Luke’s Hospital between Guerrero Street and Tiffany Avenue to 

District 9. 
 
These changes were not made to the Final Draft Map. 
 
Speakers: Chris Bowman; requested that the Task Force consider the hard decisions and 
requested that the Task Force continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Walter Caplan; requested that the Task Force continue its work and exceed the 
April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Judy Clark (The Woods of San Francisco); requested that the Task Force change the 
Final Draft Map to include the Sunnyside neighborhood wholly within District 7, bay 
adjusting one census block and requested that the Task Force continue its work and 
exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Brad Solomon; requested that the Task Force not exceed the April 15, 2022, Final Map 
deadline. 
Patrick Wolfe; requested that the Task Force not exceed the April 15, 2022, Final Map 
deadline. 
Bill Chionsini; requested that the Task Force retain the Lakeshore Acres neighborhood 
wholly within District 7. 
Christine Zaback (Forest Knolls Neighborhood Association); requested that the Task 
Force retain the Midtown Terrace neighborhood wholly within District 7 and requested 
that the Task Force continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Brenda Barros; requested that the Task Force include General Hospital within 
District 10 and requested that the Task Force continue its work and exceed the 
April 15, 2022, deadline. 
Dr. Saidah Leatutufu-Burch; offered opposition to the Draft Final Map and requested 
that the Task Force continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022, deadline. 
Alan Buradell; supported the Draft Final Map and requested that the Task Force not 
exceed the April 15, 2022 Final Map deadline. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 13, 2022 
 
 

 Page 3 

Leah McGeever; requested that the Task Force retain the Transgender Cultural District 
wholly within one supervisorial district. 
Marie Hurabiell; supported the Draft Final Map and requested that the Task Force not 
exceed the April 15, 2022 Final Map deadline. 
Qi Dai; thanked the Task Force for including the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods in District 10. 
Sylvia; supported the Draft Final Map and thanked the Task Force for their service. 
Chelsea Waite; supported the Draft Final Map and requested that the Task Force not 
exceed the April 15, 2022 Final Map deadline. 
Bobak Esfandiari; supported the Draft Final Map and requested that the Task Force not 
exceed the April 15, 2022 Final Map deadline. 
Cheryl Thornton; offered opposition to the Draft Final Map and requested that the Task 
Force no include the Potrero Hill neighborhood within District 9 and not include the 
Tenderloin neighborhood within District 5. 
Curtis Bradford, Co-Chair (Tenderloin Peoples Congress); shared various concerns with 
the Task Force, in regard to the voices of the people who reside in the Tenderloin 
neighborhood. 
Yolanda Williams; presented various alternative redistricting schemes for the city, and 
requested that the Task Force include the Potrero Hill neighborhood in District 10 rather 
than District 9, and retain the Portola neighborhood wholly within District 9. 
Ms. Billie Cooper; requested that the Task Force retain the Transgender Cultural 
District wholly within District 6 along with the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods. 
Tab Buckner; offered opposition to the Draft Final Map and requested that the Task 
Force continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Jill Shenker; offered opposition to the Draft Final Map. 
Brian Quan, President (Chinese American Democratic Club); endorsed the Draft Final 
Map and requested that the Task Force not exceed the April 15, 2022 Final Map 
deadline. 
Julian LaRosa; offered opposition to the Draft Final Map and requested that the Task 
Force continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Jaime Deloria; offered opposition to the Draft Final Map, requested that the Task Force 
retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial 
district, and requested that the Task Force continue its work and exceed the 
April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Lily; thanked the Task Force for including Lowell High School within District 4 in the 
Draft Final Map. 
Anna; thanked the Task Force for including Lowell High School within District 4 in the 
Draft Final Map. 
Jade; supported the Draft Final Map. 
Cheryl Meeker; offered opposition to the Draft Final Map and endorsed the Community 
Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition as well as the 4D map and requested 
that the Task Force continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Speaker; offered opposition to the Draft Final Map. 
Sam; thanked the Task Force for their service and offered support for the Draft Final 
Map with the Visitacion Valley and Portola neighborhoods together within District 10. 
Jason Lee; offered opposition to the Draft Final Map. 
Forest; supported the Draft Final Map. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 13, 2022 
 
 

 Page 4 

Yu Zhao Wu; thanked the Task Force for their service. 
Ai Man Pan; thanked the Task Force for their service and for including the Portola and 
Bayview neighborhoods together in District 10 within the Draft Final Map. 
Qin Tao Wu; thanked the Task Force for their service and shared various concerns about 
housing affordability within the city. 
Jin Ying Pan; thanked the Task Force for their service and for including the Portola and 
Bayview neighborhoods together in District 10 in the Draft Final Map. 
Jessica; thanked the Task Force for their service and supported the Draft Final Map. 
Steve Leeds; offered opposition to the Draft Final Map and requested that the Task Force 
continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022, deadline. 
Josephine Zhao; thanked the Task Force for their service and offered support for the 
Draft Final Map. 
Cheryl Jackson; offered opposition to the Draft Final Map and requested that the Task 
Force help unite communities of the city through their work. 
Sarah Allen; requested that the Task Force continue its work and exceed the 
April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Julie Pitta; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested that the Task Force 
include the Seacliff, West Clay Park, and Presidio Terrace neighborhoods in District 2 
rather than District 1. 
Speaker; supported the Final Draft Map and requested that the Task Force not exceed 
the April 15, 2022 Final Map deadline. 
David Elliott Lewis; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested that the 
Task Force continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Will Frankle; requested that the Task Force not exceed the April 15, 2022 Final Map 
deadline. 
Speaker; supported the Final Draft Map and requested that the Task Force not exceed 
the April 15, 2022 Final Map deadline. 
Jessica Perla; supported the Final Draft Map. 
Jordan Ling; supported the Final Draft Map and requested that the Task Force not 
exceed the April 15, 2022 Final Map deadline. 
Speaker; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map. 
Jason Henderson (Hayes Valley Neighborhood Association); offered opposition to the 
Final Draft Map as pertains to the Hayes Valley neighborhood and requested that the 
Tenderloin neighborhood not be included in District 5. 
Speaker; thanked the Task Force for their service, offered opposition to the Final Draft 
Map, and requested that the Task Force continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 
deadline. 
Jean Barrish; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested that the Task 
Force continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Mimi Klausner; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map. 
Paulina Fayer; supported the Final Draft Map. 
Jennifer; thanked the Task Force for their service and for including the Portola and 
Visitacion Valley neighborhoods together within District 10 and requested that the Task 
Force not exceed the April 15, 2022 Final Map deadline. 
Naj Daniels; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested that the Task 
Force explain the mapping choices it made in regard to the Potrero Hill and Portola 
neighborhoods. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 13, 2022 
 
 

 Page 5 

Jen Tse (League of Women Voters San Francisco); offered opposition to the Final Draft 
Map. 
Hillary Schiraldi, President (Glen Park Neighborhood Association); requested that the 
Task Force recognize the Glen Park neighborhood with a boundary at Congo Street. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Transgender Cultural District wholly 
within District 6, with the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods united in one 
supervisorial district. 
Theresa Flandrich; offered opposition to the Final Draft map and requested that the Task 
Force continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Simone; requested that the Task Force not exceed the April 15, 2022 Final Map deadline. 
Judy Hamaguchi; requested that the Task Force continue its work and exceed the 
April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting power 
among supervisorial districts. 
Peter Warfield; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map 
Coalition requested that the Task Force retain the Haight and Inner Sunset 
neighborhoods within District 5. 
Kane Hsieh; thanked the Task Force for their service. 
Speaker; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested that the Task Force not 
divide communities through the redistricting process. 
Angela R. Jenkins; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map. 
Kevin Ortiz; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map, requested that the Task Force 
include the Potrero Hill neighborhood in District 10 rather than District 9, and requested 
that the Task Force continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Sau Han Yuan; thanked the Task Force for including the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
together in District 10. 
Gloria Li; endorsed the Final Draft Map and requested that the Task Force not exceed 
the April 15, 2022 Final Map deadline. 
Richard Ivanhoe; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map. 
Speaker; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map. 
Speaker; supported the Final Draft Map and requested that the Task Force not exceed 
the April 15, 2022 Final Map deadline. 
Kim Tavaglione (San Francisco Labor Council); offered opposition to the Final Draft 
Map and requested that the Task Force continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 
deadline. 
Tom; thanked the Task Force for their service requested that the Task Force draw district 
lines to equalize the voting power among supervisorial districts. 
Keith; requested that the Task Force continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 
deadline and provide explanations for the mapping decisions they make. 
Amy Chan; thanked the Task Force for including the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods together in District 10. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force not exceed the April 15, 2022 Final Map 
deadline. 
Speaker; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested that the Task Force 
continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Uzuri Pease-Greene; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested that the 
Task Force continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 13, 2022 
 
 

 Page 6 

Speaker; thanked the Task Force for uniting the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods together within District 10. 
Steven Depant-Kelani Currier; requested that the Task Force make University Mound 
whole within District 10 by making a technical change at Cambridge Street. 
Speaker; thanked the Task Force for uniting the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods in District 10. 
Adam Pavlacka; offered opposition to the Community Unity map submitted by the SF 
Unity Map Coalition. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Cathy Mulkey-Meyer; requested that the Task Force continue its work and exceed the 
April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Francisco Herrera; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map and an endorsement of 
the 6’ map—also known as the “Healing Map” or the “Blow-Up” map—which was 
drafted on April 9, 2022. 
Speaker; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map as pertains to the Portola and 
Visitacion Valley neighborhoods. 
Nancy Tung; requested that the Task Force not exceed the April 15, 2022 Final Map 
deadline. 
Marlene Tran; thanked the Task Force for their service. 
Renee Curran; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map. 
Dr. Theresa Palmer; requested that the Task Force continue its work and exceed the 
April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Erick Arguello; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map. 
Camila Mena; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Grant Ingram; supported the Final Draft Map. 
Don Misumi; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested that the Task 
Force continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Leilani; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested that the Task Force 
continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Chris Chang; requested that the Task Force not exceed the April 15, 2022 Final Map 
deadline. 
Michelle Wu; thanked the Task Force for their service and uniting the Portola and 
Visitacion Valley neighborhoods within District 10. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Veronica Shepherd; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map as pertains to the 
District 10 boundaries. 
Sheila; thanked the Task Force for their service and supported the Final Draft Map. 
Speaker; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map. 
Michael Nulty; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested that the Task 
Force continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Justin Hoover, Executive Director (Chinese Historical Society); offered opposition to the 
Final Draft Map as pertains to the Districts 3 and 6 boundaries, requested that the Task 
Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one 
supervisorial district, requested that the Potrero Hill neighborhood be included within 
District 10 rather than District 9. 
William Walker; presented a slideshow on his proposed map to the Task Force. 
Speaker; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map. 
Gan Chu; thanked the Task Force and offered support for the Final Draft Map. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 13, 2022 
 
 

 Page 7 

John McCormack; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process, 
offered opposition to the Final Draft Map, and requested that the Task Force continue its 
work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Tricia Smith; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map as pertains to the District 5 
boundaries. 
Maggie Weissman; requested that the Task Force continue its work and exceed the 
April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Andrew Sun; requested that the Task Force not exceed the April 15, 2022 Final Map 
deadline. 
Mary Lai; thanked the Task Force for uniting the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods within District 10. 
Laura Goldin; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map. 
Martha Goldin; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map. 
Speaker; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested that the Task Force 
continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Speaker; thanked the Task Force for their service and supported the Final Draft Map. 
Speaker; supported the Draft Final Map. 
Larissa Pedroncelli; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map. 
Speaker; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested that the Task Force 
continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Evie Posmintier; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process 
and offered opposition to the Final Draft Map. 
David Pilpel; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map and shared various concerns 
with the Task Force. 
Connie Lew; thanked the Task Force for their service and for uniting the Visitacion 
Valley and Portola neighborhoods within District 10. 
Marlene Ahern; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map. 
William Owen; supported the Final Draft Map. 
David Hooper; supported the Final Draft Map as pertains to the Portola neighborhood 
and the Districts 9 and 10 boundaries. 
Lori Liederman; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map, shared concerns regarding 
transparency in the redistricting process, requested that the Task Force continue its work 
and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Anonymous; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Karen Pierce; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map. 
Alec Bash (Gateway Tenants Association); supported the Final Draft Map, and requested 
that the Task Force draw district lines to equalize the voting power among supervisorial 
districts. 
Yuan Yuan; thanked the Task Force for uniting the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods within District 10. 
Jackie; thanked the Task Force for drawing a map to equalize the voting power among 
supervisorial districts. 
Marie Sorenson; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map. 
Celina; thanked the Task Force for their service, for including Lowell High School within 
District 4, and for including the Portola and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods together 
within District 10. 
John; shared various concerns and observations about the voting history of the Portola, 
Potrero Hill, Visitacion Valley and other neighborhoods. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 13, 2022 
 
 

 Page 8 

Speaker; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map, shared concerns regarding 
transparency in the redistricting process, and requested that the Task Force continue its 
work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Fernando Marti; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map and shared concerns 
regarding transparency in the redistricting process. 
Speaker; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map and requested that the Task Force 
continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Speaker; supported the Final Draft Map. 
Anastasia Yovanopoulos; requested that the Task Force continue its work and exceed the 
April 15, 2022 deadline. 
Angela Wu; thanked the Task Force for uniting the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods in District 10. 
Luisa Antonio; offered opposition to the Final Draft Map. 
Barbara; requested that the Task Force continue its work and exceed the April 15, 2022 
deadline. 
Hope Williams; offered opposition to the Final Draft map. 
Jeremy Chan (Japantown Task Force); shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Speaker; offered various technical concerns about the boundaries of the Final Draft 
Map. 
DeAnthony Jones; observed that the law is a low standard for action and offered 
opposition to the Final Draft Map as pertains to the Districts 9 and 10 boundaries. 
 
Member Pierce, seconded by Member Cooper, moved that the Final Draft Map be 
approved and adopted as the Final Map, with no other adjustments.  The motion 
failed by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 4 - Castillon, Ho, Chasel Lee, Reiner 
 
Noes: 5 - Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Townsend, Cooper 
 

Chair Townsend recessed the meeting beginning at 9:54 p.m., and reconvened the meeting 
at 10:56 p.m. 

 
Upon return from the recess, Chair Townsend shared that he felt that the work of the 
Task Force should continue beyond the April 15, 2022 Final Map deadline, and that the 
Task Force should begin its next mapping session based upon the adjustments begun by 
member Pierce to the number 6 map during the April 9, 2022 meeting. This map has been 
referred to in the community informally by various names, including the “Blow-Up” map 
and the “Healing” map. Jaime Clark, Redistricting Consultant (Q2 Data and Research) 
shared that she would prepare this map for presentation to the Task Force and that it 
would be named Map 7. Map 7 appears on the following page of these minutes. 
 
Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 



San Francisco Redistricting Task Force
Board of Supervisors Redistricting

Map 7 ;  April 13, 2022

District label shows district name, % deviation, total deviation.
This is a preliminary version of San Francisco’s Board of Supervisors districts and is not the final map of the Redistricting Task Force. This is a preliminary version, not a final draft.



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 13, 2022 
 
 

 Page 10 

 
Chair Townsend requested that Agenda Item Nos. 3, 4, and 5 be heard together. 

 
3. Task Force Final Report 

 
There was no update to the Task Force Final Report offered. 
 
This item was heard concurrently with Agenda Item Nos. 4 and 5. See the speakers in 
Agenda Item number 5, below. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 
 

4. Authorization to Post Final Minutes 
 

The Task Force did not authorize the Clerk to post Final Minutes for the 
April 4, 6 7, 8, 9, 11, and 13 minutes at this time. Clerk Carroll stated that he will bring 
an updated version of this item to a future meeting of the Task Force. 
 
This item was heard concurrently with Agenda Item Nos. 3 and 5. See the speakers in 
Agenda Item number 5 below. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 

 
5. General Public Comment 

 
Speakers: Celina; requested that the Task Force not schedule any further Task Force 
meetings.  
Jaime Deloria; suggested that the outcome of this meeting could be a healing moment for 
the communities of the city.  
Bobak Esfandiari; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process.  
Josephine Zhao; shared concerns about the redistricting process and the response of the 
Task Force to public comment.  
Curtis Bradford, Co-Chair (Tenderloin Peoples Congress); shared concerns regarding 
transparency in the redistricting process, and shared concerns about the response of the 
Task Force to public comment.  
Alec Bash; shared various concerns with the Task Force.  
Jackie; shared his disappointment with the Task Force for not uniting the Portola and 
Visitacion Valley neighborhoods together in District 10.  
Nancy Tung; requested that the Task Force members themselves be the leaders of the 
community which unite to agree on a new district map.  
Virginia Marshall; requested that the Task Force draft a map which can unite the 
communities of the city, and do so in a professional and responsible way.  
Speaker; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process.  
Joshua; endorsed map 7 and shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting 
process.  
Steven Depant-Kelani Currier; requested that the Task Force consider including 
Treasure Island in District 3, rather than District 6.  
Cheryl Thornton; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process.  



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 13, 2022 
 
 

 Page 11 

David Pilpel; requested that the Task Force advance the Final Report as best possible 
even if the map itself is not yet ready for comment and suggested that the Task Force not 
authorize the Clerk to finalize the minutes at this time.  
Paulina Fayer; shared various concerns with the Task Force.  
Eileen Boken (Sunset Parkside Education and Action Committee SPEAK); shared various 
concerns about the Districts 7 and 4 boundaries.  
Naj Daniels; shared various concerns with the Task Force.  
David Elliott Lewis; thanked the Task Force for their action to reject the Final Draft 
Map during this meeting.  
Brad Solomon; warned that the Task Force will now exceed the April 15, 2022 Final 
Map deadline and shared concerns regarding the redistricting process.  
Speaker; warned that the Task Force will now exceed the April 15, 2022 Final Map 
deadline and shared concerns regarding the redistricting process.  
Anonymous; requested that the Task Force members provide all their records of 
communications in regard to recent Task Force meetings.  
Edward Wright, President (Harvey Milk LGBTQ Democratic Club); thanked the Task 
Force for their action on the Final Draft Map during this meeting.  
Usuri Pease-Greene; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Jeremy Chan; shared various concerns with the Task Force.  
Speaker; requested that the Task Force include the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods together in District 10.  
Yolanda Williams; requested that the Task Force include Bayview Hunters Point, Potrero 
Hill, and Dogpatch neighborhoods together within District 10.  
Hope Williams; shared observations about growing up in the Portola neighborhood.  
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together within on supervisorial district.  
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force.  
Jason Lee; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process and 
suggested that the outcome of meeting could be a healing moment for the communities of 
the city.  
Glynis Nakahara; requested that the Task Force identify shared principles among the 
members to lead the city through the redistricting process.  
Marie Hurabiell; warned that the Task Force will now exceed the April 15, 2022 Final 
Map deadline and shared concerns regarding the redistricting process. Andrew Sun; 
shared concerns regarding the redistricting process and warned that the Task Force will 
now exceed the April 15, 2022 Final Map deadline.  
Jen Tse (League of Women Voters San Francisco); shared concerns regarding the 
redistricting process. Michael Nulty; shared various concerns with the Task Force.  
Speaker; shared various concerns about meeting times and lengths.  
Speaker; shared concerns regarding transparency in the redistricting process.  
Laticia Erving; suggested that the outcome of this meeting could be a healing moment for 
the communities of the city. Tab Buckner; thanked the Task Force for not adopting the 
Final Draft Map during this meeting. 
Shanti Singh; thanked the Task Force for not adopting the Final Draft Map during this 
meeting and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 13, 2022 
 
 

 Page 12 

Kevin Ortiz (San Francisco Latinx Democratic Club); thanked the Task Force for not 
adopting the Final Draft Map during this meeting and requested that the Potrero Hill 
neighborhood be included within District 10. 
John Wong; thanked the Task Force for not adopting the Final Draft Map during this 
meeting. 
Peter; thanked the Task Force for not adopting the Final Draft Map during this meeting. 
Drew Min; shared concerns regarding the redistricting process and warned that the Task 
Force will now exceed the April 15, 2022 Final Map deadline. 
Mike Sizemore; shared concerns regarding the redistricting process and offered 
opposition to Map 7. 
 

6. Adjournment 
 

There being no further business, the Redistricting Task Force adjourned at the hour 
of 12:45 a.m., Thursday, April 14, 2022. 
 
N.B. The Minutes of this meeting set forth all actions taken by the Redistricting Task 
Force on the matters stated, but not necessarily in the chronological sequence in which 
the matters were taken up. 




